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Jonathan Sage-Martinson, Director

CITY OF SAINT PAUL 25 West Fourth Street Telephone: 651-266-6655

Christopher B. Coleman, Mayor Saint Paul, MN 55102 Facsimile: 651-228-3261

November 30, 2015

TO: THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA AND THE CITIZENS OF
SAINT PAUL:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City
of Saint Paul, Minnesota (HRA) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 is hereby presented to the
Board of Commissioners and the citizens of Saint Paul. This report has been prepared pursuant to, and
demonstrates compliance with, Minnesota Statutes Section 469.013; and recognizes the HRA’s past and
current practices of financial disclosure.

This report was prepared by the City of Saint Paul’s (City) Department of Planning and Economic
Development. In accordance with an agreement between the HRA and the City, the responsibility for
both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures is with the City. We believe the data, as presented, are accurate in all material aspects;
that they are presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position, changes in financial
position, and cash flows of the HRA as measured by the financial activity of its various funds; and that
all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the HRA’s
financial affairs have been included. This report has been prepared in accordance with current
accounting and financial reporting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
standards set by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and also follows the guidelines
recommended by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada.

State law also requires an annual audit of the books of account, financial records and transactions, and
this financial report by the State Auditor’s Office. This requirement has been met and the auditor’s
opinion has been included in this report. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards set forth in the U.S. General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing
Standards were used by the State Auditor in conducting the engagement. The State Auditor is also
issuing a management and compliance letter covering the review of the HRA’s system of internal
control over financial reporting and tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The management and compliance letter will not
modify or affect, in any way, this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.




The Government Finance Officers Association reports a growing awareness that the annual financial
report should be management’s report to its governing body, constituents, oversight bodies, resource
providers, investors and creditors. We agree with this direction, and, in keeping with past practice, will
send a copy of the report to the Board of Commissioners, HRA management, bond rating agencies,
financial institutions and government agencies and other interested parties, who have expressed an
interest in the HRA’s financial affairs.

INTERNAL CONTROL

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the Saint Paul Housing and
Redevelopment Authority (which is a component unit of the City of Saint Paul and is, therefore,
included in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) adheres to the internal control
framework as established by the City of Saint Paul. The City of Saint Paul has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect the government’s assets from loss,
theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City of Saint
Paul’s financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Because the
cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Saint Paul’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide a reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. All internal control
evaluations occur within this framework. To the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report
is complete and reliable in all material respects.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The Saint Paul Housing and Redevelopment Authority was established by State Law in 1947, Chapter
487 (codified at Minn. Stat. Ch. 469). The HRA provides the full range of services as stipulated in
Chapter 469: urban renewal, redevelopment, economic development, and rehabilitation. These services
strive to redevelop the residential, commercial and industrial areas of Saint Paul, provide adequate jobs,
a sound fiscal base, and a variety of affordable housing for Saint Paul residents. The HRA is governed
by a seven-member Board of Commissioners consisting of the members of the City Council.

The HRA was reorganized in 1978 and 1979. Under the reorganization, the HRA employees became
employees of the City of Saint Paul. The HRA has no employees. The HRA and the City entered into an
agreement, effective January 1, 1979, whereby the City agreed to perform administrative and accounting
services for the HRA.

This report includes all of the funds, capital assets, and long-term debt of the HRA as described in the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which can be found immediately following the auditor’s
opinion. In addition, it has been determined that, for financial reporting purposes, the HRA is a-
component unit of the City of Saint Paul and is, therefore, included in the City’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

The HRA is empowered to levy a tax on both real and personal property in Saint Paul. This tax has been
levied annually by the HRA. The HRA also receives property tax increments on designated Saint Paul
tax increment financing districts that were established for development purposes. Under State Law, the




HRA is authorized to issue revenue bonds on which the principal and interest are payable from specific
revenues. The HRA may pledge the general obligations of the City as additional security on these same
revenue bonds. The HRA is not authorized to issue bonds which constitute an indebtedness within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

In 2009, the Authority adopted a land valuation policy which values any new land purchase at
acquisition cost, less transaction costs and fees. That value will continue until disposal, unless the
Authority formally changes the value. In 2011, the Authority confirmed the practice and policy of using
accumulating conduit bond fees for Planning and Economic Development Administration costs. In
2014, the Authority established a property valuation policy which values lots or buildings offered for
sale by the HRA based on a third-party appraisal or broker’s opinion of market value with adjustments
to market value made at the sole discretion of the HRA prior to posting of properties for sale.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Saint Paul is an important parf of the overall strong Twin Cities metro area economy. Gross
employment gains were 14,032 in 2014.! The Minneapolis-Saint Paul area is expected to gain 407,656
jobs by 2040, a 25.3% increase from 2000.2

Saint Paul compares favorably when ranked among the 20 large northeast and midwest cities on
economic and social factors.> Among these peer cities: ’

e Saint Paul had the 3™ lowest annual unemployment rate in 2014 (4.1 %).*
e Saint Paul ranked 2™ highest in percent of population 25 years and over with a bachelor’s degree
(22.8%).
e Saint Paul ranks 6 highest in median household income ($47,010), 4™ highest in median family
income ($59,440) and 9" highest in per capita income ($28,725).°
e The median value of owner-occupied houses in Saint Paul is 6™ highest compared to peer cities
($178,700).”

Over the years, Saint Paul has consistently registered an unemployment rate equal to or lower than that
of the U.S. as a whole. The City’s unemployment rate for 2014 was just above the Minnesota rate which
was 4.1% and was significantly below the U.S. rate of 6.1%.°

! Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development, available at: https://apps.deed.state. mn.us/Imi/qcew/ResultsDisp.aspx

2 Metropolitan Council, 2030 Regional Development Framework, updated January, 2013, available at: http://metrocouncil.org/Data-and-
Maps/Data/Census-Forecasts-Estimates.aspx

3The cities are Baltimore, Boston, Buffalo, Chicago, Cincinnati, Cleveland, Columbus, Detroit, Indianapolis, Kansas City, Milwaukee, Minneapolis, New
York, Newark, Omaha, Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, St. Louis and Toledo.

* Bureau of Labor Statistics, Local Arca Unemployment Statistics available at: http://www.bls.gov/lau/lacilg]4.htm; Minnesota city unemployment rates
available at: http://mn.gov/deed/data/

52013 American Community Survey, through the American Fact Finder, available at: http://www.census.gov

62013 American Community Survey, through the American Fact Finder, available at: http:/www.census.gov

72013 American Community Survey, through the American Fact Finder, available at: http://www.census.gov




Saint Paul’s largest employment sector is Education and Health Services (58,759 jobs; 33.2% of total
jobs). Other large employment sectors include Public Administration (22,859 jobs; 12.9% of total jobs)
and Trade, Transportation and Utilities (19,091 jobs; 10.8% of total jobs).”

Similarly, tax base growth has been strong and sustained. Saint Paul’s taxable market values have
increased over 12% (from $16.4 billion to $18.4 billion). This strong growth rate is due to the
combination of a number of factors, including:

e Strong residential and apartment markets in 2003-2006.

e A state law that is gradually phasing out preferential treatment that limited year-to-year growth in
homestead taxable values (known as “limited market value”). Recently, the taxable market value
growth rate has slowed slightly as the phase out of limited market value nears completion.

Saint Paul began collecting a half-cent sales tax at the end of 1993, and added a use tax in 2000. Annual
net sales and use tax revenues have increased from $8.4 million in 1994 to $17.4 million in 2014. In
20135, revenues are estimated to be approximately $1 million higher than 2014.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The Housing and Redevelopment Authority had an unrestricted fund balance at year end in its General
Fund that was greater than 15% of the annual budget spending for this fund. In addition, the Authority
has a committed fund balance in its General Fund at year end per its adopted policy of committing the
fund balance from conduit revenue bond fees for Planning and Economic Development administration
costs. This committed fund balance at year end is greater than the annual support the Authority’s
General Fund provides for PED Administration costs

MAJOR INITIATIVES

To maintain this economic growth, the City will continue to develop and implement strategic plans to
encourage private investment in housing and economic development projects in Saint Paul.

City Strategic Plan

A new strategic vision for the City was developed by the Mayor’s administration in consultation with
other stakeholders. To support a vision of Saint Paul as the most livable city in America, it identifies
four strategic goals:

Ready for School, Ready for Life: Education is core to the quality of life in our great City. Saint Paul
will strive to eliminate the achievement gap by ensuring that learning opportunities are accessible for all
and are quality-driven. We will achieve this goal by expanding early childhood learning opportunities

8 Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development, Minnesota Unemployment Statistics available at: http://mn.gov/deed/data/
® Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development’s Quarterly Census Employment and Wages available at http://mn.gov/deed/data/




and setting children on a course for success in school: extending learning opportunities outside of the
classroom and connecting formal and informal opportunities throughout the community: and open
doorways to higher education by better informing and preparing students for post-secondary educational
opportunities.

Safe Streets and Safe Homes: Families will feel secure on our sidewalks and in our homes as a result
of our strong sense of community and confidence in our world-class public safety system. We will do
this by engaging youth with quality recreational, educational, and youth organizing activities; address
areas of disinvestment with revitalization; create strong community partnerships; build a world-class
Police Department; invest in a 21" Century Fire Department; and elevate emergency management to
leverage resources and knowledge that will prepare City to respond to multi-faceted crises.

Expanding Economic Opportunity: We will build our economic future on the foundation of the
City’s strengths — a well-educated and creative workforce, sound infrastructure, and local businesses
rich with growth potential. Strategies include creating the East Metro’s first light rail line and leverage
$1 billion in development; restoring the Union Depot to be a vital regional transportation hub supporting
high-speed rail to Chicago; through Invest Saint Paul, stimulating growth by making strategic
investments in neighborhoods of greatest disinvestment while coordinating and enhancing other services
to these communities; aggressively pursuing the first major developments in downtown in a decade; and
leveraging resources and markets for sustainable, environmentally friendly products to build a new
manufacturing economy with living-wage jobs.

Quality Way of Life: Saint Paul will set high standards for healthy urban living through civic
leadership, quality assets, sound environmental stewardship, and a welcoming, diverse population. We
will improve, expand, and maintain our parks, libraries, and facilities that benefit the neighborhoods
they serve; implement a public art policy to integrate into our public and private infrastructure; focus
development on a more natural, urban, and connected city through an expanded system of parks, green
spaces, bikeways, and trails; and make downtown a music, culture, and creative arts capital that
amplifies the City’s creative and ethnic voices that bring identity to Saint Paul.
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MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS
1. Downtown Saint Paul

Custom House

Kellogg Boulevard is undergoing a $125 million renovation. The Exeter Group, which bought the
Custom House building in 2013, plans 250 units of market-rating housing, a Hyatt Place Hotel and a
destination restaurant, Funding includes $5.8 million in tax increment financing, $725,000 from the
Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development and $850,000 for environmental
abatement from the Metropolitan Council.

The Ordway
At 345 Washington Street, the Ordway Center for the Performing Arts has replaced the 306-seat

McKnight Theatre with a $42 million, 1,100-seat concert hall, which opened in March 2015. Funding




included $20 million in state bonds and a 10-year, $3 million Cultural STAR grant backed by the City’s
half-cent sales tax.

CHS Field

Saint Paul’s 7,000-seat regional ballpark has already hosted games for its second major tenant, the
Hamline Pipers. The Saint Paul Saints played an exhibition game May 18, 2015, followed by opening
day May 21. At 360 N. Broadway Street, the city-owned ballpark was funded with $13.3 million in
private contributions and $51.4 million in public money and will be maintained by the Saints.

Stadium Ramp Restaurants

Jim Crockarell now owns the Stadium Ramp overlooking CHS Field at 255 E. Sixth Street. Plans
include a 10,000-square-foot rooftop bar and grill, as well as a restaurant occupying 6,000 square feet on
the ground level. The ground floor restaurant opened in July 2015.

Rayette Lofts
Sherman and Associates opened an 88-unit market-rate apartment building and retail space in the

renovated, historic Rayette Building in October of 2014. The $23 million project was funded by historic
tax credits, the Metropolitan Council and private equity financing. St. Dinette, an upscale eatery from
the proprietors of the Strip Club restaurant, also opened recently in the building.

Lafayette Bridge, Cayuga, Kellogg

After four long years, the end is in sight for the Lafayette Bridge project. The $125 million bridge
replacement created two new U.S. 52 bridges over the Mississippi River, in addition to improvements to
nearby roads. Work began in the fall of 2011 and wraps up in October 2015.

Sibley Square/Lofts on the Park

Across Fourth Street from the Saint Paul Union Depot, Timberland Partners will convert a historic office
building at 333 N. Sibley Street into “333 on the Park”, 136 market-rate apartments with enclosed
parking. The City has applied to the Metropolitan Council for environmental cleanup grants. Total
estimated development cost is $40 million. '

Ramsey County West Building

Hoping to entice developers to the Kellogg Boulevard river bluffs, the Ramsey County Board of
Commissioners approved $11.5 million to demolish the vacant adult detention center and former West
Publishing buildings, which span Wabasha to Market streets. Demolition is expected to continue
through spring 2016.

West Side Flats

South of the Wabasha Street bridge and Raspberry Island, Sherman Associates opened the West Side
Flats at 84 South Wabasha Street in 2014, The $35.4 million complex has 178 apartments, with a
mixture of market-rate and affordable units, and is 93 percent occupied. Funding included a $23.5
million private loan insured by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, alongside
grants and loans from the City and other local sources. The developer is planning a two-building
expansion, which would include 264 units, 5,000 square feet of commercial space and a patio facing the
Mississippi River. The expansion would be completed in 2017.




Lowry Hotel .
Building owner Jim Crockarell has been renovating the old Lowry Hotel building at 345 Wabasha Street

N. since December 2012. The $16 million facelift has created a new home for the Ramsey County
Attorney’s Office, 155 market-rate apartments and two floors of extended-stay hotel rooms. Crockarell
hopes to add a ground-level restaurant and basement music venue, as well as rooftop dining.

Twin Cities Public Television

Twin Cities Public Television is undergoing an $18.4 million renovation and expansion of its 172 E.
Fourth Street offices and studios. This renovation added space for public screenings, art exhibits,
concerts and lectures, as well as a street-level presence. Funding includes $9 million in state bonding
and $85,000 from Saint Paul’s Cultural STAR program.

Central Station :

A $1.8 million vertical elevator and stairway connection from the skyway to the sidewalk adjacent to the
Green Line’s Central Station platform opened at Fifth and Cedar streets in 2014. The City has identified
the vacant land immediately to the east as a redevelopment opportunity, and is working with the
Metropolitan Council on details.

Former Macy’s

The Saint Paul Port Authority acquired the block-long Macy’s Department Store building at 411 Cedar
Street for $3 million in 2014, A retail developer bought 10 percent of the leasable space for $2.5
million.

Kellogg Square

Bigos Management purchased the 32-story, 450-apartment building at 111 E. Kellogg Boulevard for $51
million in 2012. In addition to a remodeled lobby, a new fitness center and a skyway cafe, renovation of
300 apartments was completed in 2015.

Galtier Towers

Bigos Management is wrapping up a $6 million remodel in 2015 for 366 apartments and common spaces
in the Galtier Towers, 172 E. Sixth Street in Lowertown, including new fitness and business workspace
centers.

Crowne Plaza :

Mille Lacs Corporate Ventures has almost completed renovation of the Crowne Plaza Saint Paul
Riverfront Hotel at 11 Kellogg Boulevard, which will soon be known as the InterContinental.
Renovations include a redone lobby, meeting spaces and hotel rooms in the east tower. Work is
underway on the west tower, where rooms will get new furniture, fixtures and bathroom expansions.

Park Square Theatre

Located in the Historic Hamm Building at 408 St. Peter Street, the Park Square Theatre opened the
Andy Boss Thrust Stage in October 2014, The 200-seat, lower-level theater has hosted four theater
companies and doubled Park Square’s usual roster of performances. The $3.6 million project received a
$180,000 STAR grant from the City.




Palace Theatre

The $14 million transformation of the Palace Theatre into a concert venue is currently underway. On
West Seventh Place, the 3,000-seat hall has been closed since 1977. The City will devote $5 million
from the 2014 state bonding bill, $1 million from operating partners and an $8 million City loan from
the Mayor's 8-80 Vitality Fund. Opening is scheduled for 2016.

Children’s Museum Expansion/Renovation

The Minnesota Children’s Museum began work in 2015 on a $28 million expansion and renovation at
10 West Seventh Street. The museum received $14 million from the State of Minnesota, $1 million from
the City’s Cultural STAR program, and more than $9 million in private contributions. The project will
improve visitor amenities, increase gallery space and remake existing exhibits, with a focus on open-
ended play.

7 Corners Hardware :

Opus Development Co. recently purchased the iconic 7 Corners Hardware store at 216 W. Seventh
Street and an adjacent church in 2015 with plans to redevelop the block into 191 market-rate housing
units next to a five-story hotel. The residential building will include about 11,000 square feet of retail
space on the first floor. The Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development
(DEED) plans to provide a $200,000 cleanup grant. Construction has begun, and the project could be
done by the end of 2016.

Seven Corners Gateway

Across the street from the Xcel Energy Center, the Opus Group and Greco Property Management
received tentative developer status in 2014 to turn a city-owned parking lot at West Fifth Street and
North Smith Avenue into a gateway project. Early renderings propose two towers of hotel and
residential units, retailers and a public plaza. Opus has announced that a Radisson RED hotel concept is
planned for the site. Full site plan reviews and environmental and market studiés are expected to be
complete by April 30, 2016.

Lunds and Penfield

A Lunds grocery store featuring Caribou Coffee, Big Bowl and other tenants opened in 2014 next to the
City’s six-story, 254-unit Penfield apartment building at 101 E. 10th Street in May 2014. This building
was developed by the City for $62 million.

United Hospital/Children’s Hospital

In March of 2015, United Hospital, Allina Health and Children’s Hospitals and Clinics of Minnesota
began work on a birthing center at 345 N. Smith Avenue. The $32.5 million Mother Baby Center will be
the third birth center in the metro area. The first phase will remodel the existing neonatal intensive-care
unit and build out 30,000 square feet of new space this year, including a new entrance, a family waiting
area, triage, labor, operating and post-op rooms.

Children’s Hospital

Children’s Hospital opened a new Ronald McDonald room in July 2015 to serve families w1th kids in
intensive care. The $2 million project at 345 N. Smith Avenue includes four family sleep suites, a full
kitchen, entertainment space, a laundry and a fitness room.




Regions Hospital :

The hospital is renovating 61,000 square feet, at an estimated cost of $28.8 million. A $9 million
pathology testing lab opened in January 2015. From June through September of 2015, the hospital will
open a $6.5 million hybrid operating and cardiology/radiology imaging room, a $2.9 million employee
fitness center and wellness clinic, and a $5.4 million remodel of the 20-bed observation center. About
$3.8 million in improvements to the intensive-care unit and cardiovascular, interventional imaging and
radiation therapy rooms are underway. A physical therapy rehab clinic opened April 1, 2015, at 1710
Suburban Avenue.

State Capitol/Minnesota Senate Building

The Capitol is undergoing a $272 million facelift that will continue into January 2017 Work is also
underway on a $76.1 million Senate office building and $13.5 million, 265-stall parking ramp. A $16.8
million, four-level, 532-stall parking ramp next to the Minnesota Transportatlon Building opened in
December 2014.

II. Along the Green Line (Central Corridor)

Green Line

Metro Transit’s $957 million Green Line is the second light-rail corridor in the State of Minnesota.
Linking downtown Saint Paul and Minneapolis, the Green Line made its debut June 14, 2014, and
quickly surpassed ridership expectations.

Dorothy Day
Catholic Charities plans a $100 million, two-phase reconstruction of its overcrowded Dorothy Day

Center. The “ReVision” plan calls for converting the Labor and Professional Centre at 411 Main Street
into a five-level building offering 278 shelter and pay-for-stay beds, as well as 193 units of permanent
housing.

Sears

Since at least January 2013, Sears has been working with a broker to market its location at 425 Rice
Street for redevelopment. Sears would remain the anchor tenant, but early concept plans for “Capitol
View” include more than 100 apartments, 18 townhomes, and multiple stories of office and retail.
Redevelopment of the site is still under discussion after Chicago-based Seritage Growth Properties paid
$5.15 million for the Rice Street property in July 2015.

Western U Plaza

The historic Old Home Dairy building at 370 W. University Avenue is being converted into 68 units of
rental housing, including eight market-rate units. Some 6,600 square feet of commercial space will be
added at 470 Western Avenue. The $20 million project was supported by state and federal historic tax
credits, a $250,000 federal HOME loan, and a wide range of additional grants. Construction is expected
to wrap up in 2015.

Central Exchange, Brownstone
Model Cities is working with the City on financing two construction projects along University Avenue,
comprising 60 to 70 units of affordable housing, as well as retail. Central Exchange would be a




three-story development at 773-785 W. University Avenue, and Brownstone would be a four-floor
mixed-use building at 839 W. University. Brownstone includes a reading room emphasizing the history
of the Pullman railroad workers.

Saxon-Ford

City staff are working with the Local Initiatives Support Coalition to market the site of the former
Saxon-Ford dealership's financing center at 253-255 W. University Avenue in Frogtown. Preliminary
ideas include retail on the avenue with assisted living in back. A recent request for information on the
development opportunity closed to submissions in early July 2015.

Little Mekong Plaza

The Saint Paul City Council approved $300,000 from the Mayor's "8-80 Vitality Initiative" to demolish
a vacant meat shop at 402 W. University Avenue and create a temporary, publicly owned plaza next to
the Mai Village restaurant. Long-term plans call for a $1 million to $3 million renovation into a
permanent outdoor market and gathering space.

Lexington Library »
The HRA bought the vacant Lexington Library at 1080 W. University Avenue in 2014.

Goodwill

In February 2015, Goodwill Industries opened its largest store in the metro area at 1239 W. University
Avenue, by Griggs Street. The $10 million, two-level Goodwill spans 30,000 feet of retail, donation and
office space and replaces a long-vacant Whitaker Buick dealership.

Hamline Station

Project for Pride in Living Inc. is well into redevelopment of the former Midway Chevrolet used-car lot
at 1333 W. University Avenue into a $28 million, two-building, block-long affordable-housing
development with 108 apartments. The west building will include 13,000 square feet of commercial
space. It's supported by roughly $11 million in public grants and loans.

YMCA

Demolition and groundbreaking began in April 2015 for the new Saint Paul Midway YMCA. The $16.4
million redesign includes an aquatics center, a rooftop patio, a demonstration kitchen, a play maze and
multiple fitness studios at 1761 W. University Avenue.

Episcopal Homes

Episcopal Homes hosted a grand opening on May 20, 2015, for a 168-unit building that combines three
types of market-rate and affordable senior residences. The $45 million project is at 1860-1890 W.
University Avenue, in the general location of what had been a Porky’s drive-in. The City helped secure
$500,000 in federal HOME funds and $2 million in transit-oriented development funds from the
Metropolitan Council.

Prior Crossing
Beacon Interfaith Housing Collaborative secured financing in 2015 to build an $11 million, 44-unit
housing development for homeless youth at 1949 W. University Avenue. Site demolition has been
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completed, and the HRA has committed $1.1 million to the project.

Silgan Can ,
Orton Development has put at least $2 million into renovating the 8.78-acre Silgan Can factory at 755

Prior Avenue. About 10 commercial tenants have moved in, including Black Stack Brewery. Can Can
Wonderland plans a mini-golf-themed entertainment center next to an interior rail spur.

Pirtek

Aeon, a developer of affordable housing, bought two half-vacant commercial buildings at 2147 and
2161 W. University Avenue in 2015 with the intention of demolishing them and building residential
units by Vandalia Street. The project would span four or five levels and about 100 to 140 apartments
with a possible retail aspect.

Vandalia Tower

First and First LLC is spending $10 million to remodel eight buildings within the former King Koil
factory at 550-558 Vandalia Street. Signature tenants include Lake Monster Brewing, which plans to
open a taproom later this year, and the Independent Filmmaker Project, a media arts center offering
classrooms and screening space.

2700 University

Indianapolis-based Flaherty and Collins plans a five-level, 248-unit housing complex at 2700 W.
University Avenue. The $54.7 million building includes 3,000 square feet of retail, and 20 percent of the
units will be affordable housing. The HRA approved tax increment financing and HOME funds for the
project in the fall. Metropolitan Council is providing a $2.0 million transit-oriented development grant.
The project broke ground in June 2015.

Taprooms and Microbreweries

At least a dozen taprooms and microbreweries have opened in Saint Paul, many of them near the Metro
Transit’s Green Line corridor. Urban Growler at 2325 Endicott Street, the first microbrewery owned by
a woman in Minnesota, plans to expand its kitchen. The latest arrivals include Sidhe Brewing at 990
Payne Avenue and Bad Weather Brewing at 414 W. Seventh Street, which opened in 2015.

JII. Neighborhoods

Neuroscience Center

HealthPartners plans a $75 million, four-story, 128,000-square-foot neuroscience center at 295 Phalen
Boulevard. The project includes a 640-space parking ramp. Construction began in 2015 and wraps up in
2017. '

Phalen Village ‘ :

The North East Neighborhoods Development Corp. hopes to bring a mix of housing and retail to the
former site of the Phalen Village Shopping Center, west of the 1300 block of Phalen Boulevard.
Executive director Chuck Repke envisions 60 housing units and 25,000 square feet of retail
development.
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Ames Lake “New Rose” Development

Real Estate Equities acquired four dilapidated buildings housing 48 apartments in 2015, which it will
rehabilitate as part of the fifth phase of the Ames Lake development at 1144 Barclay Street financed by
$2.8 million in Community Development Block Grant loan assistance.

Hamm’s Brewery

The Hamm’s Brewery is once again producing beer at 700 Minnehaha Avenue Flat Earth Brewery,
which began brewing on-site in March 2014, is tentatively poised to open a beer garden this fall. Next
door, the 11 Wells Distillery opened a tasting room in 2015. Urban Organics has been operating an
aquaponics fish-and-produce farm.

Willow Reserve

Habitat for Humanity will build a dozen three- and four-bedroom homes on a three-acre lot in the North
End previously owned by the HRA. Bordering wetlands, the Willow Reserve project at 389 and 425
Maryland Avenue is projected to break ground in spring 2016.

Pipefitters Training Facility

Steamfitters Pipefitters Local 455 will spend $8 million to add a story to an old contractor's shop at 1301
L'Orient Avenue and convert it into a 65,000-square-foot headquarters and training facility, with space
for their credit union.

234-238 Bates

Euclid View Flats, a three-story apartment building at 234-238 Bates Avenue that dates to 1895, was
listed in the National Register of Historic Places in February 2014. The 12-unit site was acquired by the
City and sold to the Sand Cos., which plans a $2.2 million renovation supported by state and federal
historic tax credits.

Mississippi Market and the Cambric Apartments

The Mississippi Market co-op plans opened its third store in 2015, a $10 million, two-level building at
740 E. Seventh Street. Next door, Dominium plans to build the $27 million Cambric Apartments, 113
units of affordable rental housing for seniors. .

Metro State

Metropolitan State University is remaking its Dayton’s Bluff campus with a $20 million, 760-stall
parking ramp at 400 Maria Avenue, a $12 million student center off East Seventh Street, and a $39
million, three-story science center at Sixth Street and Mounds Boulevard. The ramp and student center
opened in 2015.

Schmidt Brewery

The Jacob Schmidt Brewery’s renovated the Bottlehouse and Brewhouse buildings which are now the
Schmidt Artist Lofts, thanks to a $130 million historic renovation led by Plymouth-based Dominium and
a host of public funding partners. Urban Organics, a local produce supplier, has a purchase agreement to
move into land owned by investor Bruce Hendry. Craig Cohen has received two grants from the
Metropolitan Council for environmental cleanup of the Schmidt Keg House, which he envisions turning
into an open-air marketplace anchored by a restaurant.
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Hazelden

The Hazelden Betty Ford Foundation is devoting $25 million to doubling treatment capacity at its 680
Stewart Avenue campus. The first phase, a 55,000-square-foot building for its existing chemical-health
programs, is scheduled to open in 2015. Phase two, which includes renovations of the mansion, the
outpatient mental health clinic, the upper parking lot and landscaplng, could be completed by April
2016.

Victoria Park Apartments

At 740 S. Victoria Street, Chase Real Estate completed the $30 million, three-story, 215-unit Victoria
Park apartments in 2014. Construction of phase two, also $30 million, began in 2015 and will entail 197
market-rate units in a five-story apartment building at the edge of the future Victoria Park off Shepard
Road and Otto Avenue.

The Waters of Highland Park

Minnetonka-based Waters Senior Living started construction in October 2014 of a four -story, 84-unit
senior living apartment building at 678 S. Snelling Avenue. The HRA issued $21.9 million in tax-
exempt conduit revenue bonds. Construction is estimated to be complete in 2015.

Highland Village :

Between Highland Parkway and Pinehurst Avenue, TJL Development has proposed converting an Edina
Realty office at 735 Cleveland Avenue into a four-story building featuring 53 apartments over 19,000
square feet of commercial space.

Ford Site

Eager to see the Ford Plant’s nearly 150-acre Highland Park campus redeveloped into a model of
environmental sustainability, Saint Paul Mayor Chris Coleman toured European redevelopment sites for
ideas this year. The City has organized task forces geared to alternative energy, zoning, jobs and biking,
transit and pedestrian infrastructure at the former Ford plant. Community input meetings and
informational sessions are ongoing.

The Vintage on Selby

Associated Bank relocated from 1573 Selby Avenue and opened a location next door in 2014, making
room for the Ryan Cos. to build “The Vintage on Selby”, 208 market-rate apartments, and a 39,000-
square-foot Whole Foods Market.

Libraries

The Saint Paul Public Library system has nearly completed $14.8 million in renovations outlined in its
2011 capital needs assessment, including top-to-bottom remodels of the Sun Ray and Highland branch
libraries. Next up is a $1 million reorganization of the George Latimer Central Library at 90 W. Fourth
Street.
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Housing and Redevelopment
Authority of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota, for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. This was the twenty-ninth consecutive year that the Saint Paul
HRA has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report was accomplished through the efficient and dedicated services of the City
Department of Planning and Economic Development accounting staff. The cooperation and assistance
provided by the State Auditor’s staff was very helpful and is greatly appreciated.

. NN " o ’ = 7 \‘) P B < B 5 )
- e /< DI F) Flepe it el ccnl
& ! ’ ——
“tv” Jonathan Sage-Martinson Rhonda Gillquist
Director Accountant
AA-ADA-EEO EMPLOYER

14



ST0Z/TE/L

“suonessdo PR EODEF RSP TR [EREEER GHELIET
PUE 8n1on1seiul suolpadsupand - e ~Sunydnpuedgesy e | [ T T " guiuueld SBOIAIBS [RID9dS
30IAIBS JBWOISND suonIadsul UoINASU0D e AN[iIn 1amas $231A135 SuIsnoy SIS
yawdopaag 32INIBS SoUBUIIUIRBIN 19901 suonesisanu] swdojsasg [HOHTETREN]
uonedddy Iawoisn)pue .&_Ehmm Suiksaing pue sawi) Jofey 30Uy suonesado
SUOIIEDIUNIWOD ‘BuisuadGuatudoarag . e pue‘lononisuoy | uoriesILILIPY puE 2410 S1019811Q uoiINIISUSD
juatuadeue|ni15slold S-/sBuipjing ueasen ‘upgsuBuy Jeans $901A19S Hoddns S9IINIBS ~pueugiseg
: Sunadjien PUEIUBWIIIOT 30D e sa8pug. suonesadojoned [epueu{pue “isndwey-owio)
pue 2310 5,010 JOPPNAAYIJO AIPO. " e 20io:sA0RaAa NIYO S 421D uoneJIsIuIWpPY - -uonesiuwpy
. . - . justidojanag- S
ASojoujray. uoipadsuj pue Ayajes SHIOA I1qnd wsuiiedag adijod 2Uou0o3 pue Tuiuueyy " uoneassy puesyied

L I i ] : I ]

E:n_.‘_,wzm.ucm G _,o;m,n_ Cilel

B U Anseslit e ;
oueydwo) Penuc) - SIS FUINSUOD HH . ae153 jeay . ; ; _
suonesdnsaau| JusWwasseue NSy . uonusAa.d adi4 . UOnEAOUL] ; - )
SIYSiy uetuny . syjousd sahojdwy suonesedo L4 ; : w 198png K : uonesnn .
sisAjeuy Joeijuo) . Q:SUOIIR|aY 10qE]) . $32IATS ; - ; asuodsay. e .

uoddng ssauisng

. 2ANNIBXT .
: pue Buliunody . e

UOIUSABId . e

Ayunyioddg o1uiouoa3

jenb3 pue sjydiy uewny $33JN0S3Y UBWINH 2140 s, Asuiony And

53211495 Ajajes pue aJid SIIINIDG Jetoueuly judwaleuey Aduadiowy

Auoyiny siopsip
pue GonusAuo)
2IUIDIAAY

o - — — — ——— . — ——— o — — — — — —— —— — o]

| spio2sy - s A e ™ Kuoyiny uod

] {o.1B959Y [1IOUNOY) e

I

JoAeIN R paeogAieiqi]
pieog VdH L. S30INIDS J21EM
JpUno) A {euoidoy jned juies
. v . i
QHNLOHUN_N

(pJepn Ag pa129)3 SJaqIBW|IDUNOD UIASS YUM “JoAelp ,8U011S, :JUSWIUISAOD) JO WLIO4)

BJOSSUUIIA ‘|ned JUles Jo AlD

15



Commissioners

Daniel Bostrom
Amy Brendmoen
Kathy Lantry
Russ Stark

Dai Thao

David Thune
Chris Tolbert

Officers

Chairperson
Amy Brendmoen

Vice-Chairperson
Russ Stark

Secretary
Kathy Lantry

Treasurer
Dai Thao

Executive Director

Jonathan Sage-Martinson

HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Term of Office

From

January 1, 1996
January 11, 2012
January 1, 1998
January 8, 2008
November 21, 2013
January 14, 2004
January 11, 2012
January 8, 2014

January 8, 2014

January 11, 2012

January 8, 2014

August 4, 2014

16

To

December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

Indefinite



®

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting
Presented to
Housing and Redevelopment
Authority of the City of Saint Paul

Minnesota

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2013

G 4 o

Executive Director/CEO

17




- This page intentionally left blank -

18



STATE OF MINNESOTA
OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR

SUITE 500 (651) 296-2551 (Voice)

525 PARK STREET (651) 296-4755 (Fax)
REBECCA OTTO SAINT PAUL, MN 55103-2139 state.auditor@state.mn.us (E-mail)
STATE AUDITOR 1-800-627-3529 (Relay Service)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Commissioners of the Housing and Redevelopment
Authority of the City of Saint Paul
Saint Paul, Minnesota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and each major fund of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(HRA) of the City of Saint Paul, a component unit of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota, as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the HRA’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Penfield Apartments, a major fund (HRA Penfield
Enterprise Fund) and 30 percent, 22 percent, and 18 percent, respectively, of the assets, net
position, and revenues of the business-type activities. Those financial statements were audited
by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the Penfield Apartments, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the HRA’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the HRA’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the HRA of the City
of Saint Paul as of December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the HRA of the City of Saint Paul’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, the supplementary schedules, and the statistical section as listed in the table
of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.
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The supplementary schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 25, 2015, on our consideration of the HRA of the City of Saint Paul’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the HRA of the City of Saint Paul’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance. It does not include the Penfield Apartments,
which was audited by other auditors.

M

REBECCA OTTO GREG HIERLINGER, CPA
STATE AUDITOR DEPUTY STATE AUDITOR

November 25, 2015
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HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

As management of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint Paul (HRA),
we provide readers of these financial statements this overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the HRA for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements which are
found on pages 38-95.

Financial Highlights

. Total position of the HRA exceeded total liabilities at the end of 2014 by $94.0 million.
Net position increased by $42.6 million during 2014. This net increase included an
increase in business-type activity net position by $2.2 million and an increase in
governmental activity net position by $40.4 million. The business-type activities are the
HRA Loan Enterprise Fund, the HRA Parking Enterprise Fund, the HRA Lofts Enterprise
Fund, and the HRA Penfield Enterprise Fund.

. The HRA’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $43.8 million. An
amount of $28.7 million is restricted, primarily for future debt service on existing long-
term debt and tax increment financing.

. The total principal amount of long-term debt decreased during 2014 by $35.9 million to a
total of $176.3 million, a 16.9% decrease from 2013. Total interest expense on long-term
debt in 2014 was $14.6 million, an increase of $3.3 million from 2013.

. The assets of loans receivable and accrued interest on loans decreased by $31.7 million to
a total of $53.9 million at December 31, 2014. There was an overall decrease in the net
loans receivable after subtracting the allowance for uncollectible loans and loan interest.
The allowance for uncollectible loans and interest, based on an analysis of credit risk and
payment delinquency, is $47.8 million at December 31, 2014, a decrease of $31.0 million
over December 31, 2013.

. Five new HRA administered tax increment financing districts were created in 2014.
Total tax increment revenue for HRA Districts was $20.9 million in 2014, an increase of
$0.5 million from 2013. The captured tax capacity of all Saint Paul tax increment
financing districts including the Port Authority is 9.74% of Saint Paul’s total tax capacity.
This represents a decrease of 0.01 percentage points from 2013.

. The major housing development initiative continued in 2014 with 774 new or
substantially rehabilitated single- and multi-family housing units completed in Saint Paul.
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HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the HRA’s basic financial
statements. The HRA’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components:

1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary schedules and statistical
tables, in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad view of
the HRA’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These are found on pages
38-40 of this report.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
(business-type activities).

The HRA’s governmental activities include:

e Development in the tax increment financing districts and other redevelopment
areas

e Federal, state and local grant programs

e Debt service on tax supported debt

e General operations financed through the HRA General Fund

e Multi-year development projects that are locally funded

The HRA'’s business-type activities are:

Development loan programs
Parking operations

Lofts

Penfield

On January 1, 2014, the HRA fund structure for the HRA Grants Special Revenue Fund, the
HRA Grants Fund, and the HRA Loan Enterprise Fund were changed. The HRA uses the City’s
finance system and a new finance system was implemented on January 1, 2014 that changed the
fund structure. The accounting for foreclosure prevention grants was moved from the HRA
Grants Fund to the HRA Loan Enterprise Fund and the accounting for the Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) grants was moved from the HRA Grants Fund to the City’s HUD Grant
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HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

Special Revenue Fund. The accounting for the Lofts and Penfield was moved from the HRA
Loan Enterprise Fund into two separate enterprise funds. HRA fund accounting policies are
included in Note 2.A.

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the HRA’s assets and
liabilities at December 31, 2014, with the difference reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the HRA’s
financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the HRA'’s net position changed
during 2014. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future
periods.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The HRA, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the HRA can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds. The governmental fund and proprietary fund
financial statements are found on pages 41-45 and pages 46-50 of this report.

Governmental funds are used to account for the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating near-term financing
requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
HRA'’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The HRA maintains the following five governmental funds: HRA General Fund, HRA Grant
Fund, HRA Debt Service Fund, HRA Tax Increment Capital Projects Fund, and HRA
Development Capital Projects Fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
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HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

in fund balances for each of these five funds.

The HRA adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and its debt service fund.
Multi-year budgets are adopted for the special revenue fund and the capital projects funds. A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided in the basic financial statements for the HRA
General Fund. The HRA'’s governmental funds reflected almost exclusively positive variances
compared to the final 2014 and multi-year budgets.

Proprietary funds are used to account for the same functions reported as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements. The HRA maintains four proprietary funds: HRA
Loan Enterprise Fund, HRA Parking Enterprise Fund, HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund, and HRA
Penfield Enterprise Fund. Information is presented separately in the proprietary fund financial
statements for each of these funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements are found on pages 51-95 of this report.

(Remainder of this page left intentionally blank)
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HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

Financial Analysis of the HRA as a Whole

Net Position. The following chart shows components of the HRA’s assets, liabilities, and net
position and compares 2014 with 2013 at December 31.

SAINT PAUL HRA'S ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION
At December 31, 2014 and 2013

Total
Percentage
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals Change
Restated Restated
12/31/14 12/31/13 12/31/14 12/31/13 12/31/14 12/31/13 2014-2013
Assets
Cash and Investments $ 46,909,107 $ 46,088,681 $ 28,650,299 $ 29,046,636 $ 75,559,406 $ 75,135,317 0.6%
Other Current Assets (1,196,111) (1,093,938) 3,138,073 2,948,488 1,941,962 1,854,550 4.7%
Land Held For Resale 3,489,351 3,620,573 7,222,021 7,337,433 10,711,372 10,958,006 -2.3%
Loans Receivable 915,388 3,857,979 5,189,947 2,925,159 6,105,335 6,783,138 -10.0%
Leases Receivable 11,250,000 11,857,500 - - 11,250,000 11,857,500 -5.1%
Capital Assets 17,929,964 18,605,286 153,888,264 157,193,222 171,818,228 175,798,508 -2.3%
Other Non-Current Assets 2,462,191 2,462,191 1,312,273 1,390,454 3,774,464 3,852,645 -2.0%
Total Assets 81,759,890 85,398,272 199,400,877 200,841,392 281,160,767 286,239,664 -1.8%
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 2,908,490 7,996,164 8,006,583 14,625,896 10,915,073 22,622,060 -51.7%
Long-Term Debt 72,519,746 112,127,866 103,735,769 101,042,619 176,255,515 213,170,485 -17.3%
Total Liabilities 75,428,236 120,124,030 111,742,352 115,668,515 187,170,588 235,792,545 -20.6%
Net Position
Net Investment in
Capital Assets 7,330,112 8,005,434 47,512,699 54,190,603 54,842,811 62,196,037 -11.8%
Restricted for Debt Service 10,259,124 12,372,431 4,225,175 3,865,748 14,484,299 16,238,179 -10.8%
Restricted for Operations
and Maintenance - - 572,070 564,898 572,070 564,898 1.3%
Restricted for
Capital Projects 8,660,499 - - - 8,660,499 - 100.0%
Restricted for Tax
Increment Financing 12,054,523 - 12,054,523 - 100.0%
Restricted by Grantors - - 773,865 - 773,865 - 100.0%
Unrestricted (31,972,604) (54,404,315) 34,574,716 26,551,628 2,602,112 (27,852,687) 109.3%
Total Net Position $ 6,331,654 $ (34,026,450) $ 87,658,525 $ 85,172,877 $ 93,990,179 $ 51,146,427 83.8%

Total assets of the HRA exceeded total liabilities resulting in an overall surplus of $94.0 million
at December 31, 2014. Net position of the business-type activities are $87.7 million at
December 31, 2014. In governmental activities, the HRA issues long-term debt for housing and
economic development purposes and, in many cases, does not acquire or construct HRA-owned
capital assets with the debt proceeds. This is common for housing and redevelopment
authorities. For the Saint Paul HRA, this has been the case with the tax increment bonds and the
sales tax bonds. The debt is to be retired with future revenues, namely property tax increments
and city sales taxes. In past years financing has been sufficient for all governmental activity
long-term debt service payments and other debt service requirements. Likewise, it is projected
that future revenues will adequately finance all existing debt service requirements. Unrestricted
net position in business-type activities is $34.6 million at December 31, 2014. However, a large
portion of the unrestricted net position is represented by loans receivable, which often have
repayment terms in excess of twenty years.
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Total assets of the HRA decreased by 1.8%, to a total of $281.2 million at year-end. Cash and
investment balances increased by 0.6% in 2014. The net asset for loans less their allowance
decreased in 2014 by 10.0%. Capital assets decreased during 2014 by 2.3%.

The HRA’s long-term debt, at $176.3 million is 94.1% of its total liabilities. The outstanding
balance of long-term debt decreased by 17.3% during 2014. Governmental activity long-term
debt includes tax-supported debt — the tax increment bonds and the sales tax bonds, along with
the lease revenue bonds and various development notes. Business-type activity debt includes the
parking revenue bonds, that were issued to finance the construction of HRA-owned parking
ramps, the 2010 issued Lofts at Farmers Market Limited Tax Bonds, and the Penfield
Apartments, LLC mortgage for construction of Penfield Apartments, LLC.

2014 Assets
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Changes in Net Position. The following chart shows the changes in net position during 2014
and compares this with 2013.

SAINT PAUL HRA'S CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Total
Percentage
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals Change
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014-2013
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 3,586,141 $ 1,659,753 18,034,795 14,494,306 21,620,936 16,154,059 33.8%
Operating Grants and Contributions 46,968,517 24,700,142 2,223,684 2,673,781 49,192,201 27,373,923 79.7%
Capital Grants and Contributions - - - 17,971 - 17,971 -100.0%
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 22,344,285 21,739,480 1,753,095 1,738,167 24,097,380 23,477,647 2.6%
Gain on Sale of Capital Asset - - - 31,681 - 31,681 -100.0%
Investment Income 1,405,439 (681,645) 553,952 (221,893) 1,959,391 (903,538) -316.9%
Total Revenues 74,304,382 47,417,730 22,565,526 18,734,013 96,869,908 66,151,743 46.4%
Expenses
Housing and Economic Development 25,470,071 35,650,269 25,470,071 35,650,269 -28.6%
Interest on Govt Activity Long-Term Debt 10,166,094 8,442,342 - - 10,166,094 8,442,342 20.4%
Development Loan Programs - - 1,802,462 2,826,743 1,802,462 2,826,743 -36.2%
Parking Operations 11,938,124 11,779,363 11,938,124 11,779,363 1.3%
Lofts 1,122,190 - 1,122,190 - -
Penfield 3,777,489 3,777,489
Total Expenses 35,636,165 44,092,611 18,640,265 14,606,106 54,276,430 58,698,717 -7.5%
Excess (Deficiency) before Transfers 38,668,217 3,325,119 3,925,261 4,127,907 42,593,478 7,453,026
Transfers 1,689,887 (994,613) (1,689,887) 994,613
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 40,358,104 2,330,506 2,235,374 5,122,520 42,593,478 7,453,026
Net Position, January 1 (34,026,450) (37,056,264) 85,423,151 80,050,357 51,396,701 42,994,093
Net Position, December 31 $ 6,331,654 (34,725,758) 87,658,525 85,172,877 93,990,179 50,447,119
2013 Restatements 699,308 250,274 949,582
Net Position, December 31, Restated $ (34,026,450) 85,423,151 51,396,701

Total revenues of the HRA increased by 44.6% in 2014, while total expenses decreased by 7.5%,
resulting in an increase in net position in 2014 of $42.6 million.

As shown in the table, governmental activities are financed heavily with tax revenue and
operating grants and contributions. Property tax revenue in governmental activities increased by
2.7% with most of the increase being in tax increment revenue. Operating grants and
contributions increased by 90.2% in 2014. Housing and Economic Development expenses
decreased in 2014 from 2013 by $10.2 million, or 28.6%. Interest on governmental activity
long-term debt increased in 2014 by 20.4% from 2013.

Charges for service revenue in business-type activities in 2014 increased by 24.4%. Total
business-type activities expenses increased in 2014 by $4.0 million or 27.6%.
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Financial Analysis of the HRA’s Funds

As noted earlier, the HRA uses fund accounting to maintain control over resources and to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with financial-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the HRA’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
HRA'’s financing requirements.

At December 31, 2014, the HRA’s governmental funds reported total fund balances of $43.8
million. Approximately 74.1% of this is either nonspendable or restricted to indicate that it is not
available for new spending. Of the restricted amounts totaling $28.7 million, $10.3 million is for
future debt service on existing bonds and notes. Committed, assigned, and unassigned balances
total $11.3 million. Of the committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balances, $6.3 million has
been committed in the HRA General Fund for support of HRA operations.

The HRA General Fund is the chief operating fund of the HRA. Revenues include the HRA
property tax levy, fees from conduit revenue bond issues, property rentals, land sale proceeds,
investment earnings, and excess tax increments receipts. The major spending activities are for
staff administration of HRA programs, maintenance of HRA properties, and professional
services for HRA programs and projects. The fund balance in the HRA General Fund increased
during 2014 by $0.1 million to a total of $12.0 million at December 31, 2014, due to decreased
spending of staff administration for HRA programs and projects.

The HRA Grant Fund accounts for intergovernmental revenues provided primarily by the
Federal and State governments for housing grant programs and projects. Grant revenues are
recognized as eligible grant expenditures are incurred, resulting in little or no fund balance.
During 2014, the Special Revenue Fund received $0.15 million in revenues which were grant
revenues from other governments.

The HRA Debt Service Fund accumulates resources and pays debt service for the HRA’s debt
that is not financed by the four enterprise funds. Debt service on the bonds is financed by
property tax increments, City sales taxes, lease payments from the City, and investment earnings.
At December 31, 2014, the fund balance is $10.3 million, which is entirely restricted for future
debt service. Total debt spending during 2014 was $45.7 million.

The HRA Tax Increment Capital Projects Fund accounts for HRA major development projects

and capital projects in Saint Paul tax increment districts and other redevelopment areas. $11.1
million of the total fund balance at December 31, 2014, is restricted for unspent balances of
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previously approved projects. Total 2014 spending from this Fund was $9.6 million. Projects
with the largest 2014 spending include the support of the RiverCentre from the MN Events
District. All of these projects are financed with tax increment bond proceeds.

The HRA Development Capital Projects Fund was established during 2007 to account for HRA
multi-year development projects. These projects are locally funded through transfers from other
funds and bonds sold for development purposes. During 2007, the HRA implemented the Invest
Saint Paul Initiative program which is financed in part with Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. The fund
balance at year-end was $10.2 million. In 2014, a contribution of $2.0 million from the
Minneapolis/Saint Paul Housing Finance Board was received for HRA development capital
projects.

Proprietary Funds

The proprietary fund financial statements provide the same information found in the business-
type activities column of the government-wide statements, but in more detail. The proprietary
funds use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, which
are the same as those used for private sector business enterprises. The HRA'’s proprietary funds
are the HRA Loan Enterprise Fund, the HRA Parking Enterprise Fund, the HRA Lofts Enterprise
Fund, and the HRA Penfield Enterprise Fund.

The HRA Loan Enterprise Fund accounts for loans issued and related servicing for various
housing and economic development programs and projects. The Fund has unrestricted net
position totaling $16.5 million at December 31, 2014. The assets of the Fund include loans
receivable and accrued interest on these loans which are reported at $4.9 million (net of
allowance) and in many cases have long repayment terms before there will be liquidation to cash.
Cash and investments are reported at $6.8 million at December 31, 2014. The Fund had an
overall increase in net position of $0.8 million for 2014, primarily due to restructuring HRA’s
funds by moving HRA Lofts and Penfield activities into two separate funds.

The HRA Parking Enterprise Fund accounts for the operation of HRA-owned parking facilities
in Saint Paul. The Fund has unrestricted net position of $14.2 million at December 31, 2014.
Assets in the Fund include capital assets for parking facilities reported at the depreciated amount
of $88.3 million. Long-term debt used for financing the construction of the parking facilities is
$58.1 million in principal outstanding at December 31, 2014. The Fund had operating income of
$4.4 million during 2014.

The HRA Lofts Fund accounts for the Lofts at Farmers Market. The Fund has unrestricted net
position totaling $0.2 million at December 31, 2014. The assets of the Fund include capital
assets which are reported at $9.5 million, net of accumulated depreciation. Cash and investments
are reported at $0.9 million at December 31, 2014. The Fund had an overall net position of $2.5
million at December 31, 2014.
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The HRA Penfield Fund accounts the Penfield Apartments. The Fund has unrestricted net
position totaling $3.7 million at December 31, 2014. The assets of the Fund include capital
assets which are reported at $56.0 million, net of accumulated depreciation. Cash and
investments are reported at $3.8 million at December 31, 2014. The Fund had an overall net
position of $19.2 million for at December 31, 2014.

HRA General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final amended budget for the HRA General Fund includes the original adopted budget plus
any previously appropriated funds set aside for the purpose of honoring legally incurred
obligations (prior year encumbrances), plus any additional supplemental appropriations that were
legislated by the Board of Commissioners during the year. Actual 2014 spending was 0.8%
lower than the final spending budget. Actual revenues were 25.3% higher than the final
financing budget.

Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 2014, the HRA had total long-term debt outstanding of $178.6 million as
shown in the following chart.

SAINT PAUL HRA'S LONG-TERM DEBT
At December 31, 2014 and 2013
Total
Percentage

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals Change
2013 2013

2014 Restated 2014 2013 2014 Restated 2014-2013
Tax Increment Bonds $ 45,288,952 $ 48,228,892 $ - $ - $ 45,288,952 $ 48,228,892 -6.1%
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - 31,430,000 - - - 31,430,000 -100.0%
Lease Revenue Bonds 11,384,098 12,028,339 - - 11,384,098 12,028,339 -5.4%
Parking Revenue Bonds - - 36,076,152 37,910,580 36,076,152 37,910,580 -4.8%
Tax Increment - Parking Bonds - - 22,079,493 23,864,931 22,079,493 23,864,931 -7.5%
Limited Tax Bonds - - 7,755,000 7,855,000 7,755,000 7,855,000 -1.3%
Mortgage - - 40,464,920 33,372,108 40,464,920 33,372,108 21.3%
Development Notes 13,930,515 14,491,104 1,580,000 1,580,000 15,510,515 16,071,104 -3.5%
Totals $ 70,603,565 $ 106,178,335 $ 107,955,565 $ 104,582,619 $ 178,559,130 $ 210,760,954 -15.3%

All of the debt has specified revenue sources that are pledged for its retirement. In addition, the
City of Saint Paul has issued a general obligation pledge on certain tax increment bonds that
have a total of $35.4 million outstanding at year-end 2014. The City’s G.O. pledge provides a
secondary source of repayment if tax increments are not sufficient to service the related bonds.
For the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, there is a gross pledge of the half-cent sales tax to pay debt
service. For the RiverCentre Facility Lease Revenue Bonds, the City has pledged City sources
and RiverCentre revenues to make lease payments to the HRA. Non-payment of the lease by the
City may create credit rating implications to the City, which is currently rated AAA by Standard
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& Poor’s. For the Parking Revenue Bonds, in addition to net parking ramp revenues, the City
has pledged the first $3.0 million collected annually in parking meter and parking fine revenues.

In 2014, the Snelling-University Tax Increment Refunding Bonds, Series 2005C were refunded
with the Snelling-University General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014D. In 2014, the
Penfield mortgage issued to construct Penfield Apartments, LLC was adjusted and construction

was completed.

All 2014 scheduled principal and interest payments were made in accordance with the terms of
the bonds and notes.

Additional information on the HRA’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5.F. on pages 80-86
of this report. The schedule of revenue bond coverage in the Statistical Section of this report
shows the history and reliability of debt service financing sources.
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Capital Assets

The HRA'’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of

December 31, 2014 is $171.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation) as shown in the

following chart.
Saint Paul HRA's Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation)
At December 31, 2014 and 2013

Total
Percentage
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals Change
2013 2013

2014 2013 2014 Restated 2014 Restated 2014-2013
Land $ 3,042,169 $ 3,042,169 $ 31,754,831 $ 31,754,831 $ 34,797,000 $ 34,797,000 0.0%
Buildings 11,360,679 11,720,395 61,572,728 9,315,200 72,933,407 21,035,595 246.7%
Equipment 1,391,882 1,557,379 1,391,882 1,557,379 -10.6%
Parking Ramps - - 59,168,823 61,516,341 59,168,823 61,516,341 -3.8%
Pedestrian Skway Bridges 3,527,116 3,842,722 - 3,527,116 3,842,722 -8.2%
Construction in Progress - - 53,049,471 - 53,049,471 -100.0%
Totals $ 17,929,964 $ 18,605,286 $ 153,888,264 $ 157,193,222 $ 171,818,228 $ 175,798,508 -2.3%

Total depreciation expense for governmental and business-type activities during 2014 was $5.3

million.

Additional information on the HRA’s capital assets can be found in Note 5.E. on 79-80 of this

report. A chart of the HRA’s capital assets is shown below.

2014 Capital Assets
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Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Saint Paul HRA’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to the City of Saint Paul, Department of Planning and
Economic Development, 25 West Fourth Street, Saint Paul, MN, 55102.

37



‘SjuaWIale]S [eroueUly asayl Jo Led [eibajul ue ale sajou BulAuedwoade ay

panunuo)
19/'09T'18¢ 1/8'007'66T 068'65.'18
9TT'/2S'E - 9TT'/2S'E
€28'89T'65 €28'89T'65 -
288'T6E'T 288'T6E'T -
LOV'€EE6'TL 8¢/'CLS'19 6.9°09€'TT
000°L6.L'7E TES'VSL'TE 69T°Cr0'E
Yor'v.L9'e €.2'21E'T T61°29€'C
000°00T - 000°00T
216'G.. €68'GeZ. 6T9'6Y
€28'62€'S S0'v9v'y 69/'G98
000'0S2‘TT - 000°0S2'TT
00€'05¢ - 00€'052
G88'0.€ G88'0.€ -
T/8'79¢€ T/8'79¢€ -
G8T'T0¢ G8T'T0¢ -
9v8'11€'C ov8'11€'C -
Y0€'91r9'C Y0€'919'2 -
2/E'TTL'0T T20'cze’'L TSE'68Y'E
1G9'G6 1G9'G6 -

66€'CT 66€'CT -

- 12v'9v0'C (Lev'9v0'2)
991'26¢ 99€'89 00T'¥8T
IST'.T IST'.T -
6¥1'085 9¥79'28 €0G'L6V
YET'V86 T2r's18 €1.'89T
806'8..'9 6770'09S 6G8'812'9
¥9G'2€0'S ¥9G'2€0°'S -

E€VG'TES LGS G6G'T60°LTS 8V76'6EV'0V$
e SaIANOY SaIANOY
adA1-ssauisng [elUBWILIBA0D)

S13SSV V10l

sabpug AemAys uelisapad
sdwey Bupjred
juswdinb3g
sBulpjing
(payerpaideq 10N) puen
:uonerdaldaqg paredy 4o 19N ‘s1assy [ended
S)UN UBWUIBA0D JBYIQ O} 8dUBAPY
ETCLIELENEEIN]
(92uEMO||Y JO 18N) SUBOT UO B|qBAISIDY 1S8I8)U| PaNIddY
(s9uemo||Vv JO 19N) 3|geAI9d9Y SUBo]
a|geAIfday sasea bBuloueulH 1981
921AI9S 1097 910N .0} ysed
@oueUSIUR pue suoireladO puog xel pajwi] Joj ysed
@oueUBIUR pue suoieladO puog anuaAay 1o} ysed
9JIAISS 103 puog Xe] pajwiT 1oj ysed
92IMI9S 18 puog uonebi|qo [esaua) o) ysed
99IAIBS 1g9Q puog anuanay 1o} ysed
:S19ssy palousay
olesay 1o} pjeH pue
asuadx3 predaid
SHUN JUBWUIBA0D J8YIO Wol4 ang
saoueeg [eusau|
SJUBWISAAU| UO 3|qeAISd9Y 1Sa1aiu| Paniody
(2ouEMO||Y JO 18N) B|qeAIdaY SIUBWSSaSSY Juanbuleg
Auno) Asswey woly ang - a|qeniaday saxe] Auadold
(9oUemo||v JO 18N) 3|geAIaI9Y SIUN0IIY
S931SNIL YIM SJUBWISSAU| pue ysed
Suaby [easid yum ysed
J2INSEeaI] YIM SJUSWISSAU| PUE YseDd

S13SSV

(sJejjop ul sjunowy)

¥T0Z ‘I€ Jaquiadaq

NOILISOd L3N 40 INIJNILVLS

INVd LNIVS 40 ALID FHL 40 ALIHOHLNY LNIWJOT3AIAIY ANV ONISNOH

38



‘SjuaWIale]S [eroueUly asayl Jo Led [eibajul ue ale sajou BulAuedwoade ay

6.1'066'€6$ G2G'859'/8% ¥G9'TEE 9%
ZTT1'209'C 9TL'V.S'VE (¥09'226'T€)
598'€LL §98'€LL -
0/0'2.G 0/0'2.G -
€25'7S0'2T - €25'7S0'2T
661'099'8 - 6617'099'8
662'78Y' VT SIT'S2Z'Yy ¥21'652'0T
T18'2v8'vS 669'CTG LY ZIT'0EE"L
88G'0.T'.8T 2SETYLTIT 9€2'82Y'SL
T8T'9T6'T - T8T'9T6'T
G89'V6Y'ET - G89'V6Y'ET
¥ZT'0T8'6€ ¥ZT'018'6€ -
000'G¥9'2 000'G¥9'L -
¥08'6¥8'2€ €6v'621'02 TIE'02Y'CT
168'209'L 2ST'I9T'vE 6EL'TYY' OV
000'0TT 000'0TT -
000'08S'T 000'08S'T -
0€8'sey - 0£8'seY
000'192'2 - 000'192'2
000'0SS'T - 000'0SS'T
88L'/ET'T 88L'/ET'T -
000'0S9'T 000'0S9'T -
€6€'CT2 €6€'CT2 -
602'S0T 602'S0T -
96.'759 96.'759 -
2I2'LLL 212'LLL -
1€6'6/2'C TIE'STT'C 922'09T
500'818'T €51'156 265'998
98.'G¥S'T GI8'€ TL6'TYS'T
8€z'ee 8ez'ee -
10S'9.€ BET'EST z9g'€ze
809'8EE$ 622'222% 6.E'9TT$
[elol SONIANOY SONIANOY
adA1-ssauisng [elUBWILIBA0D)

(1101430Q) NOILISOd 13N V101

(oye@) snowy psjouisalun
siojuels Ag

@ouBUBIUIR pue suoneladO
BuioueulH Juswaiou| xe
sy08loi1d ende)d
ERINVESRETg]

110} Pa1OLISaY SUNOWY

sjassy [endeD ul Juswisanu| 19N

NOILISOd 13N

S3ILNIgvITIvLOoL

uonebljgO uoleIpaway uonnjjod
JeaA auQ uey} aiow ul ang - a|qeAed sa10N
a|qeAed abebuon
JeaA |auQ uey) alow Ul anq - a|qeAed spuog xe| paywi
Jea auQ uey) alow ul anq - a|qeAed spuog uonebl|qO [elauaD
Jea A\ auQ uey) alow Ul anq - a|geAed spuog anuanay
JeaA |auQ ulyum anq - a|qeled spuog xe] pajwi
JeaA auQ ulyum ang -a|qeled SsaioN
JeaA auQ ulyIm anq - a|jqeled SaloN anuanay
Jea A |uQ UIyIm anq - a|qeled spuog anuanay
JeaA auQ ulyIm ang - a|qeked spuog uonebijgo [essusn
:sanjiger] wiaL-buo
a|qefed spuog anuanay
o|qehed spuog uonehiqo [etous
a|qeAed spuog Uo 1SaIaju| panidoy
a|qeled abebLo Uo 1sa18iu] paniody
'S}9SSY pajolIsay wolj ajqeked saijiger
JeaA auQ ulynm ang-a|qeled abebuopn
JeaA auQ ulyim anq - a|geAed spuog anuanay
anuanay pauleaun
1ge@ wia1-buo uo ajgehed i1salsiu| paniooy
S)UN [BIUBWIUIBAOD J18YI0 0} anQ
a|qefed salefes paniooy

a|qeked s1oenu0D
a|qeked siunoodoy

SEINRIENN]

(sJejjop ul sjunowy)

¥T0Z ‘T€ Jaquiadaq

NOILISOd L3N 40 INIJNILVLS

INVd LNIVS 40 ALID FHL 40 ALIHOHLNY LNIWJOT3AIAIY ANV ONISNOH

39



"SJuaLLIBIeIS [eIoURULY 8say) JO Led [eibajul ue are sajou BulAuedwodde ay |

6.T'066'€6$ G25'859'/8% 759'TEE'9% ¥T0Z 'T€ Jaquiada( ‘uonisod 18N
T0L'96E'TS TST'€Cy'S8 (0st'920'vE) (4°Z @10N) parelsay-T0z ‘T Arenuer ‘uonisod 18N
8/¥'€6G'2y v1€'5€2' ¥0T'8SE‘0Y uonisod 18N ul abueyd
T2.'950'9¢ 09T'LT9 TT9'6EV'SC Slajsuel] pue SanNUaAaY [elauds) [elo|
- (288'689'T) 188'689'T siajsuel |
T6E'656'T 2S6°€SS 6EV'SOV'T 3WO0oU| JUSWIS3AU|
666'0£6'02 G9g'20T'T ¥€9'828'6T siuawaioul xe1 Auadoid
18£'99T'E 0£.'099 TS9'GTIS'C xe] Ausdoid VHH
:S9NUBAIY |elaus9)
101'985'9T ¥T2'8T9'T £61'8T6'VT - 0% T0Z'Z6T'67$ 9£6'029'TC$ 0E1'9.2'vS$ sweibold/suonound || - [e101
¥TZ'8T9'T ¥TZ'8T9'T - - ¥89'c22' S6/'7€0'8T 59Z'0v9'8T sanAnoy adAl-ssauisng [ejoL
96T'622 96T'622 - - GIS'T92'T 0.T'SYL'C 68Y'LLL'E piayuad
£15'sy £15'8y - - 662'/ST YOv'€T0'T 06T'22T'T syo7
T97'v18'T T97'v18'T - - Sv6'28 079'699°ET ¥2T'8E6°'TT suonelado Bunjed
(9s6'cLY) (9s6'cLY) - - G26'12L T85'909 Z9v'208'T swelbold ueoT juswdopreg
:SaNIANOY adAl-ssauisng
€67'816'7T - €67'816'7T - /TS'896'9F TPT'985'E G9T'9€9'GE SANAIOY [BIUSWIUIBAOD - [€I0 L
(¥60'99T°0T) - (¥60'99T°0T) - - - ¥60'99T'0T 109@ wia1-buo [eluswuIBA0D UO 1SaI8lu|
/85'780'52$ - ¢ /85'780's¢$ -3 /TS'896'9V$ TY1'985'c$ T.0'0LY'SC$ swdolans( d1wouodg pue BuisnoH
S9NIAINDY [eIUBWUIBA0D)
[elol SONIAIY SONIAIY suonngUuo) suonnquiuo)  swelbold ueo sasuadx3 swrelbold/suonouny
adA)-ssauisng [eluBWUIdN0D) pue sjuelo pue sjuels /S92INIBS
renden Bunelado 10} sabreyd

uonisod 18N ul sabueyd
pue anuanay (asuadx3) 19N

sanuanay weiboid

(srejjo@ ui syjunowy)
¥102Z ‘TE Jaquisdaq papu3 JesA [edsld syl Jo-
S3ILIAILOY 40 INJNILVIS

INVYd LNIVS 40 ALID 3HL 40 ALIYOHLNY LINJNJOT3IAIATH ANV ONISNOH

40



"SJUBLIANE]S [eIdueULy 8say) Jo 1ed JeiBiajul ue ase sajou BulAuedwodde ay |

panunuo)
966'260'9T €6€'298'T §G9'v9Z'C 688'98€'TT - 650'6.5
£81'18¢"L 92T'2eT'C 2T.'858'Y - 560°8S 085'z€ee
¥9€'€r'e - ¥9E'€ZV'E - - -
10%'920'C 21€'6€0'C - - S60°LE -
T/6'TYS'T ¥18'26 €98'GZy'T - 000'T2 ¥62'2
z9g'cee - - - - z9e'eze
6LE'9TTS -3 S8t'6$ -3 -3 ¥68'90T$
062'€52'/9% SYT'TLT'VIS €9G'G9Z'8T$ €10'9¥9'TZ$ 02.'9€7$ 6V8'€€6'2T$
000'0S2'TT - - 000°0S2'TT - -
16T'29'C T6T'29'C - - - -
1€6'9/€'T 188789 - - - 050'269
00€‘052 - 00€‘052 - - -
1GE'68Y'E 8/9'879'T 82€'25¢'T - - Sve'ssy
000°00T 000‘00T - - - -
61967 8 11961 - - -
69.'G98 6TS'60T 0G2'95. - - -
00T'¥8T 9%56'tT 29785 9G59°/9 - 9z0'cy
€T1.'89T - - - - €T.'89T
898'G2Z - 16%'06 86T'79 - 6LT'TL
S€9'TL2 - 60€'€0T €0T'G2T - eze'ey
6G8'8T2'9 - - 658'8T2'9 - -
8¥6'65 0V$ 906'052'6$ 218'709'ST$ 167'026'c$ 02.'9e2$ SIE' 12V TTS
spun4 mwom._o‘_n_ muow._o‘_n_ 9JINIRS sjuelo) |elsuan)
[eluUsWUIBA0D) [ended [ended 19ed VYH VHH
[eloL juswdojanag juawalou| V4H
ViH Xel VyH

(T) .41, S821n0Say JO Smojju| paliajaq [e10L

sanijiger [eloL
Spun4 JaYIO Wolj ddUeApY
anuaAay pauseaun
SHUN [EIUBWUIBA0D JBYIO 01 8N
a|qefed s1oenuod
9|qeAed Sunoody

Saniigert

S3IONVIVE ANNd ANV ‘dId ‘'S3ILITgvIT

S13SSV V101

a|geAIaday sasea buioueulH 19a.1Q
SHUN [EIUBWUIBA0D JBYIO 0} S8UBAPY
spun4 JayiO 0} SaouBApY
92IAISS 109 S10N 10} YseD :S1assy palollsay
a[esay Joj p|aH pue
3|geAIad9Y 910N
(20UEMO||Y JO 18N) SUBOT UO 3|qeAIaday 1SaIalU| Paniody
(20ueMO||Y JO 19N) 3|genIaday sueo]
SIUSLWIISSAU| UO 3]|qeAIaday 1SaIaiu| paniody
(soueMO||Y JO 18N) 3]|geAIadaY SIUN0JJY
Jakedxe] wanbuiag
Auno) woly ang
:9|genday saxe | Auadold
S931SN.] YIIM SJUBWISSAU| pue ysed
Jalnseal] Yum SJUSWISaAU| pue ysed

S13Ssv

(sJejjop ul syjunowy)

¥T0Z ‘T€ JaquisdeQ

SANNA TVLINIANIINOD
133HS IONV1Vd

1NVd LNIVS 40 ALIO JHL 40 ALIHJOHLNY LNIFWdOTIAIAId ANV ONISNOH

41



7S9'TEE'9$

T18'8LL'EY
(LST LV L)

"SJUBLIANE]S [eIdueULy 8say) Jo 1ed JeiBiajul ue ase sajou BulAuedwodde ay |

$T0Z 'TE J19qWiadaq ‘uwn|od SBINIANDY [EIUBWIUIBA0D - UONISOd 18N J0 Juswalels Jad (11oyaq) uonisod 18N
$TOZ 'TE Jaquiadaq ‘spun4 [eIUsWUIBA0D - 188YS aoueleq Jad saouejeg punH

sway| Buljiouoday e1o ]
'Spuny 3y ul pauodal 10U ‘210J818Y) ‘S| pue $32IN0S3I [eloURUY JO ABINO Ue Jou S| asuadxa 1qap peg '

(TI8T'9T6'T) anuanal pauseaun
T8T'9T6'T uoirefi|qo uoneipawal uonnjjod
‘9nUBAaJ pauleaun ul uondnpal e Ag 189S0 SI Aljigel| 8yl spuny ay) ul payodal Jou S| ‘alojaIay) ‘pue pouad
Jua1IN2 3y} Ul d|qeAed pue anp ag 0} Padadxa Jou S| pue ainyeu ul wisl-Buol si uonehijqo uonelpswsal uopnjod syl ‘¥
(LTT'OLV'TL) ‘'spuny ay) Ul pauodal Jou are ‘a10ja18y)
‘pue pouad ua1ind ay ul ajgeled pue anp 10u aJe ‘a|qeAed sajou pue spuog Buipnioul ‘sanijiqer wisi-buo ‘g
966'260'9T 'Spuny 8y} Ul SNUBA3I d|ge|reAeUN aJe ‘ai10jalay) ‘pue sainypuadxa pouad juannd 1oy Aed 0} s|ge|ieAe jou ale $82Inosal wial-bBuol Jsylo 'z
¥96'626'LT$ 'spuny 8y} ul pauodal Jou aIe ‘a10j818Y} ‘pue SB2IN0SAI [BIDUBUL JOU dJe SBIIIAIIDE [eluswuIdaAob Ul pasn siasse [elded T
:asnedaq Jualaylp ale (6c-8€ sabed) UONISO 19N JO JUBWSILIS By} Ul SBIIANJR [eluswwuIdA0b 1oy payodal sjunowy
‘68 abed ‘|N'G S10N Ul UMOYS 3Je SMO|jul PaJIajap JO [e10} Alewwns ay) ul swall fenpiaipul syl (T)
062'€Se'L9% SYT'TLT'VIS €95'692'8T$ €T0'9v9'1C$ 02.'9ge$ 678'cE6'CTS SIONVIVA ANN ANV ‘dId ‘'SAILITIGYIT IVLOL
T18'8LL'EY 929'9.1'0T 96T ZVT'TT ¥21'652'0T G29'8.T 0ve'ze0'et saouefeg pund [eloL
227'656'Y - - - - 221’656 paufissy
89/'0L£'9 - - - - 89.'0L€'9 psniwwod
€67'60L'82 8vS'62T L 96T CYT'TT ¥21'65¢2'0T G29'8.T - pausey
8cr'eeL'es 8.0'L¥0'€$ - $ - $ - $ 050'269% a|qepuadsuoN
Saduereg pung
spun4 [SEEIIE [SEEIE ERINERS sjuel [CIENER)
[eIuaWuIBN0D [ended [ended 198a VdH VHH
relol uswdojanaq uswWaIoU| VdH
VdH Xel V4H

(sJejjop ul syjunowy)

¥T0Z ‘T€ JaquisdeQ

SANNA TVLINIANIINOD
133HS IONV1Vd

1NVd LNIVS 40 ALIO JHL 40 ALIHJOHLNY LNIFWdOTIAIAId ANV ONISNOH

42



"SJUBWaTe]S [elouURULY 8say} Jo Led JelBajul ue ae sajou BulAuedwoade ay |

panunuo)
¥8T'T06 (229'v€2) OTT'6TT'T 608'TE6 (€29'€82) (06€'1€9)
679'€ST'EL 2ST'/S2'E 9/€'719'6 292'€0v'vS SOT'LEY YSLTYY'S
/889G - - 18895
TL2'1SL - - TL2'1SL - -
TEV'ETV'E - G80'S80'€ 9ve'8ze - -
Tv8'2LL - 68G'GLT 252'16G - -
9/G'¥S0°L - - 9/G'7S0°L - -
000°026'9€ - - 000'026'9€ - -
TGL'ZEL'6 - 08L°LSL 0£6'889'8 - T¥0'982
268'St'vT A AT 226'S65'S - SOT'LEV €TL'SST'S
€€8'7S0 VL 08t'220'€ 981'€€L'0T T/0'GEE'SS ZEV'EST ¥9€'018'Y
GTZ'016'C 0./5'88€'C - S¥9'TZS - -
8.1'8.S 19512 9TZ'SST GST'¥0Z - ovZ'L6T
TE€L'099 6SL°0T £¥9'8v Lyr'0LT - 788062
¥06'T 819 982'1T - - -
LT2'T0T 529'c6 26S°L - - -
¥02'98S - - $02'98S - -
S0€°00% 120612 8.2'18T - - -
St's8e S1E'8 - - - 0€T'LL2
¥0L'2¥S'T - - - - Y0L'L¥S'T
11€'66S VY 666'6.2 - 0SL'9ST'vv Zer'esT 96T'6
TYe'SE8'6T - TLV'6ET'0T 0.8'569'6 - -
128969 - - - - 128'969
08169 - - - - 08169
TI6'T8L'T$ - % - 8 - $ - % TI6'T8L'T$
spun4 syoalold syoalold ERINVETS sjueln [LIETETS)
[elUBWILIBA0D [ended [ended 198 VdH ViH
[elol juswdojanag JuswiaJou| VYH
VaH xel VdH

salnypuadx3 (JIapun) JI8AQ Sanuanay Jo (Aoualolaq) ssaax3

sainypuadx3 [elo L
S1S0D 9ouenss| puog
Aeuad wawAedaid 1gaqg
SB3JON UO Isalai|
S9]JON U0 JuawiAed rediouud
spuog uo isala|
spuog uo JuswAed fedipuld
92IMBS 1990
A1D - reyuswiuianobiai|
juswdojaAaq 21Wouo23 pue BuisnoH
waun)
S3INLIANIIX3

sanuanay el
suonnquuoy apIsINO
snoaue||aasIN
SIUBWIISAAU] JO aN[eA Jreq ay) ul (asealoaq) asealou|
SJUBWISAAU| UO pauled 1salau|
BWO09U| JUBWISAAU|
sjuswAeday ueo
sue0T UO 1salalu|
Auadold jo speluay
pueT jo sajes
S9JIAISS pue S99 Iayl0
S99 puog anuanay
S90IAI9S pue S3les ‘saaH
[ejuswulanobiaiu|
sjuawalou| xe] Auadoid
sanuedsiq [easlH
saxe] Auadoid wanbuyaqg
soxe] Auadoid uain)d
saxe]
SIANNIATS

(srejjop ui sjunowy)
10z ‘TE Jaquiadaq papud JeaA [edsid ayy Jo4
SANNS TVLINIWNHGIAOD

S3IONV1VE ANNL NI SIONVHO ANV STINLIANIAXT ‘SINNIATY 40 INIFWILVLS

1NVd LNIVS 40 ALID 3HL 40 ALIHOHLNY LNJNJOTIAIATY ANV ONISNOH

43



"SJUBWaTe]S [elouURULY 8say} Jo Led JelBajul ue ae sajou BulAuedwoade ay |

SBNIAIOY JO JUBWBTE]S - SBNIAIDY [BIUSWIUIBA0D) JO UONISOd 19N Ul abuey)
sway| Buiouosay ero
'spuny feluawiuianob ul sainypuadxa se panodal jou ase

‘910J2I3Y} ‘pUB S82IN0S3I [RIOURUL JUSLIND JO 3SN 8y} alinbal 10U Op SaNIANYY JO JUSWaYeIS 8y} Ul pauodal sasuadxa awos v

"SWIa) parelal pue 1gap wid)-6uof Jo WuawIeal) dyY} Ul SadUalayIp

9S8y} JO 109443 18U 8y} SI JUNOWEe SIY] "S9NIAIDY JO JUBWAILIS 8y} Ul PazZiJoWwe ale SJUNowe asay) ‘sealaym

‘panssl s1 1gap Uaym sunodsip pue swniwaid Jo 10848 ay1 Lodal spuny eluswulanob ‘osy “uomisod

18U U0 19948 Aue Ssey uonoesues) JSYISN "Spunj [eIUSWUISA0H JO S821N0Sal [elouRUl JUSLIND Y} SSWNSU0D 1gap Wial-6uoy

uo [ediound jo uawAedal ay) ajiym ‘spuny feluswiuianoh 01 Sa0IN0sal [eloueUl JUaLIND sapiaoid 1gap wial-Buol Jo aouenssi ayl ‘e
'spuny feyuswulanob ayy ui

Sanuanal se payodal Jou are $82IN0Sal [eldUBUY JUSLIND 3pIAoid 10U Op eyl SaIIAIIJY JO JUSWSIE]S 8y} Ul SBNUaAay ‘2

uoireldaldap Jeak Juaund

"asuadxa uoneroaidap se pauodal pue seAl| [NJasN PalewnsSa syl JaA0 Paledo|[e S| S1esse
8S0U} JO 1S02 8y} ‘SBINIAIDY JO JUBWISIRIS Ui Ul ‘JaASMOH ‘Sainipuadxe se sAejino [eydes uodal spuny [BIUBWUIBA0S T

(anoge) spuny [euawuianob [e1o] - saduefeq puny ul abueyd 18N

:asneoaq Walaylp ale (o abed) SBMANOY JO JUSWBIEIS By} Ul SBIIANDR [elUBWUIBA0B 10) patiodal sjunowy

¥0T'8SE'0v$
221'09.'GE
1.2'868
220°/8L'SE
(6v5'6%72)
(z2e's19) (zze'sL9%)
289'16S'v$
T18'8LL'EV$ 979'9/T'0T$ 96T'ZVT'TTS ¥21'652'0T$ G29'8.T$ 0v2'220'2T$
621'18T'6€ 862'T.LV'6 S¥6'7€9'S S¥8'80L'TT 862'29Y €v.'€06'TT
789'/6G'Y 82€'S0L 152'20S'S (tzL'6vv'T) (€29'€82) 167'8TT
861'969'€ 000'0v6 Ty1'88€E'Y (0€5'18€°2) - 188'677.
TI9TT - - TI9'TT - -
000'S66'T - - 000'S66'T - -
(TTE'6.1'S) - (585's¥S) (9z2'ce6'y) - -
86T'69T'L$ 000'0v6$ 92.'€6'v$ G8G'SYS$ - $ 188'6v.$
spun4 syoalold syoalold ERINVETS sjueln [LIETETS)
[eluBWUIBN0D) feudedn feuden 19ed VdH YdH
[eoL swdojanag juswaliou| VYH
VaH xel VdH

€ Joqwadad ‘SIONVIVE ANNd
(4°z 210N) parersay-T Arenuer 'SIONVIVE ANNA
saouejeg pun4 ul sebuey) 18N

(sasn) saainos BuroueuiH J8ylO [e1o0L
panss| spuog uo wnjwald
panss| spuog Buipunjay

NQO sIaysuel |
u| siajsuel]

(S3SN) S324NOS ONIONVNIH ¥3HLO

(srejjop ui sjunowy)
10z ‘TE Jaquiadaq papud JeaA [edsid ayy Jo4
SANNS TVLINIWNHGIAOD

S3IONV1VE ANNL NI SIONVHO ANV STINLIANIAXT ‘SINNIATY 40 INIFWILVLS

1NVd LNIVS 40 ALID 3HL 40 ALIHOHLNY LNJNJOTIAIATY ANV ONISNOH

44



"SJUsWIB]e]S [eloueUly 8sayl Jo Lied [eiBajul ue ate ssjou BulAuedwodage sy

L19'6TY'T$ 0v2'220'2T$ £9G'209'0T$ £9G'209'0T$
- £v/'€06'TT €¥/'€06'TT £¥/'€06'TT
1196TH'T L6V'8TT (08T'T0E'T) (08T'T0E'T)
£/€'20t 188677/ YTG LS vTG 29
000'S62 - (000'G62) -
£/€'70T /88677, ARAL) ARAL)
¥0€'2T0'T (06£'T£9) (¥69'8¥79'T) (¥69°cY6'T)
TEE'Sh vS.'Tr'S G80'/8t'S G80'28.'S
- T¥0'982 T¥0'98¢2 T¥0'98¢2
TEE'SY €T/'SST'S ¥¥0'T0Z'S ¥¥0'961'G
€16'TL6 ¥9£'0T8'Y 16£'8£8'C 16£'8£8'E
221'96 zzr'sey 000'2€€ 000'2e€
96T'6 96T'6 - -
65896/ ¥€8'v28'T G/6',90'T G/6',90'T
96.'60T$ 212'8vS'2$ 9T¥'8EY'Z$ 9T¥'8EY'Z$
(enneban) [enioy [eul4 reulblo
3AIISOd
- 186png reuiq sunowy palabpng

YUM doURLIRA

T€ Jaqwadad ‘IONVIvVE ANN4
(42 810N) parelsay ‘T Arenuer ‘IONVIvVE ANN4

saouepeg pund ul sabueyd 19N

(sasn) s8ainos Buioueui4 JayiQ 101
1N slajsuel]
u| siajsuel]

(S3SN) SIDINOS ONIONVYNIH YIHLO

salnpuadx3 (Japun) JBAQ Sanuanay Jo (Aoualoaq) ssaax3

salnupuadx3 g0
AID - reluswiulanobiaul
wawdojanag d1wouoo3 pue BuisnoH
waun)

S3INLIANIdX3

sanuanay [elol
aWO0JU| JUBWISAAU|
A0 - reluswulanobiaul
S9JIAISS pue Sajes ‘saaH
saxe ]

SANNINIH

(srejjop ul sjunowy)
¥TOZ 'TE J9quiadaQ pspul JesA [edsld ay) 404
aANN4 1TVH3INTD VaH

TVNLOV ANV L39dN9g - SIONVIVE ANNd NI SFONVHO ANV STINLIANIAXT ‘SINNIATY 40 INFNILVLS

1NVd LINIVS 40 ALID 3HL 40 ALIHOHLNY LNINdOT13IAIAIH ANV ONISNOH

45



"SJUBWUBIE]S [eroueULy 9S8y} Jo Led [esfisjul ue ale sajou BulAuedwodde ay |

panupuod
T29's12'002 T08'.¥0'09 €66'09%'0T ¥52'268°L0T €.G'v18'1C
G59'TSC'€9T 67.'670'9S 0TS'625'6 ¥00'856'68 26EVTL L
¥92'888'€ST 6¥.'6¥0'9G 015'625'6 500'60€'88 -
(028'081'1S) (T6v'00€'T) (281'089) (zv8'661'6Y) -
T20'€8E'C ¥08'ce sve'ee 2L6'9EE' -
9T9'T65'€9 9ev'L9L'eS 807'6€2'6 2LL'v8S -
979'6€9°L0T - - 9T9'6€£9°'L0T -
TE8'VSL'TE 000'095'€ Yve'LY6 18V'Lv2'Le -
€12'21E'T - - 000'G9Z €L2'LYS
T.T'T98'C - - i.'v9S Lev'9ee'e
€68'GcL - - 500'€8 888'¢19
¥S0'vor'y - - 0S2'9gT ¥08',22'y
996'€96'9€ 250'866'E €81'TE6 0S¢'ve6'LT T8T'00T T
§88'0L€ - G88'0.L€ - -
G8T'T0C - - G8T'T0C -
T.8'v9¢€ - T.8'V9€ - -
9v8'LLE'e - - 9v8'LLE'C -
¥0€'9v9'C - - ¥0E'9¥9' -
159'G6 159'G6 - - -
Te0'cec’, - - - Teo'eez'L
66£'CT - - - 66€'CT
99€'89 - 260°L v9L'ce 01G'8E
LST'LT - - - LST'LT
9v9'28 - - 9v9'c8 -
TZY'S18 v21's8 - 162'0€L -
670'09S - - - 670'095
¥9G'2€0'S 0.2',18'€ 19€'8.T 126'TV0'T -
S6S'T60°LT$ T$ 89¢2'0T$ 182'T€8'0T$ S70'052'9%
spun4 asudiaug asudiag asudiaug asudiaug
Arejaudold playuad vuH s30T VH Bunired voH ueo voH
eloL

spung esudiaiug - s

110y adAl-ssauisng

S13SSV 1v10l1

S19SSY JUalINJUON [e10 ]

(uoneroaida@ pare|NWNIdY 40 18N) S1I9SSY [ende) [e1o |
uoneloaldag parenwinddy :Ssa
juswdinb3g
sbuipjing
sdwey Bupjed
(payepaidaq 10N) pue
's1assy [ended
SHUN [eIUSWIUIBA0SD JIBYIO 0} SSOUBAPY
sSpun4 JayiQ 0} SadUBAPY
(20UEMO||V 0 19N) SUBOT UO 3|qeAISI9Y 1SI3IU| PanIody
(a2oueMO||V JO 18N) 3|geAIBd9Y SURODT]
1S19SSY JUSLINJUON

S19SSY UaLIND €10

2ouUBRUBIURRI pue suoneladQ puog Xe] paNwi o} yseD paroLisay
9ouBUBURIN pue suoieladQ puog anuaAay o} ysed paloulsay
9JIAISS 1g8Q puogd Xel pajwiT Joj ysed palouIsay
92IAISS 192 puog uonebijqO [eIaud9 10} YseD paroLisay
99IAIBS 109 puog aNUBASY 0} YseD paloulsay
asuadx3 predaid
alesay Joj p|aH pue
SHUN JUBWUIBA09D) JBYIO Wol4 ang
SJUBWISAAU| UO 3|qeAIaday 1SaIaiu| Paniddy
(2oUeMO||V JO 19N) 3]|geAISd9Y SIUBWSSAaSSY Juanbulleg
Auno) wouy ang-ajqensday saxe| Auadoid uanbijag
(20UEMO||V 40 18N) B|geAII3Y SIUN0IIY
S93)SNJL YNIM SJUBWISAAU| pue ysed
Swaby [easi4 Yum ysed
Jainseal] YIm SIUSWISAAU| pue ysed
'S}8ssy Jualny

S13SSV

(srejjop ui sjunowy)

¥TOZ ‘TE 1aquiadaq v

SANNH AYV131H4dOodd
NOILISOd L3N 40 LNIJNILVLS

INVd LNIVS 40 ALID JHL 40 ALIHOHLNY LNINJOTIAIATH ANV ONISNOH



"SJUBWUBIE]S [eroueULy 9S8y} Jo Led [esfisjul ue ale sajou BulAuedwodde ay |

G¢5'859'/8% 8€.'Zv2'6T$ G89'¢.v'es €€8'2,9'8V$ 692'0L2'LT$
9TL'V.S'VE 606',59'€ TI8'LT T6S'GYZ'vT ¥0v'96%'9T
598'€LL - - - 598'€L.
0,0'2LS - §88'0.€ S8T'T0T -
G.1'Gee'y - 8.1'2ST 169'2.0'v -
669'CTG'LY 628'78G'ST 0TS'V.L'T 09€'€ST'0E -
(Gv9's%9) - - (5%9'5¥9) -
(0z6'v9v'or) (0z6'v9v'ov) - - -
(000'592'59) - (000's52'2) (000'0T5'29) -
(0z8'08Y'1S) (T6%'00€'T) (28%'089) (zv8'66v'6Y) -
¥80'69€'G02 ovz'0se'LS 166'602'0T 1¥8'808'LET -
960/GGZTT €90°G08°0% 80€'886'L TZV'612°65 YOETYS'Y
69/'G29°€0T ¥Z1'018'6€ 000'S¥9°L S¥9'065 7S 000'08S'T
000'08S'T - - - 000'08S'T
¥2T'018'6€ ¥2T'018'6€ - - -
000'Gv9'L - 000'Gv9'L - -
ZST'TOT'VE - - ZST'T9T'vE -
€61'621'0C - - €61'621'02 -
12€'T€6'8 6E6'766 80€EVE 9/1'829'v ¥0E'796'C
000°0TT - 000°0TT - -
88LLET'T - - 88/'/ET'T -
000'059'T - - 000'0S9‘T -
96.'759 961759 - - -
212'LLL - - 212'LLL -
T1€'STT'2 165'22 - - 02.'260'C
602'G0T 602'S0T - - -
£6€212 - £6€'212 - -
066'GE9 - - 066'GE9 -
€9v'GTE - - £9¥'aTE -
vrL'v18 - - - vrL'v18
SI8'e - - 9L 6eL'E
8ez'ez 8ez'ee - - -
6ET'EST 095'86 S16'02 - ¥99'c€
622'222$ S¥S‘06$ -8 1v2'2TT$ LEV'6TS
spun4 asudiaug asudiag asudiaug asudiaug
Areyauidoud plRYUSd VHH SO VHH Bupired vaH ueo7 VuH
[ejoL

spung esudiaiug - s

110y adAl-ssauisng

NOILISOd 13N V1Ol
(1oyep) slunowy palaLIsaiIun
SI0JURIS) 10} PAIOLISDY
8aoueUBUIRIN pue suoneladQ Joj parolIsay
92IAIBS 193Q 10} paloLIsay
s1assy [ende) ul JUsWISaAU| 19N [e10L
winiwald pue junodsig paziuoweun
a|qehed abeblon
a|geAed spuog
(uonisinboy [ended Joj panssi igad parejay) 1d2q
uoneloaidaq pareinwinddy
sjassy [ende)n
sjassy [ended
sjassy [endeD ul Juawisanu| 19N
NOILISOd 13N
S3ILINIGvI IvLOoL
gel JUaLINJUON [el0 L

a|qeAed Sa10N anuanay

a|qehAed abebuon

a|qefed spuog xe] paywi]

a|geded spuog anuanay

a|qefed spuog uonehiqo [elsusn
el ualnouoN

seniiqer Jusun [eloL

S1assy PalolIsay woly ajqehed spuog xe] pajywi
S]assy PalolIsay woly ajgeled spuog anuanay
S1aSSY paolIsay woly ajqeked spuog uonebliqo [eiausn
IeaA auQ UIyIm anq - ajqeled abebrop
JBaA BUQ UIyIM an( - a|qehed spuog anuanay
anuanay pauseaun
a|qeAed abebLo uo 1salalu] panidoy
S1aSSY PalolLIsay wolj ajgeked spuog xe] pajiwi uo 1Sa1aiu] paniody
S1aSSY PalolIsay wolj ajgehed spuog anuanay Uo 1Sa1aiu] paniody
S1aSSY paiolIsay wolj ajqeked spuog uonebl|qo [eI1auas) uo 1SaI1a)u| Paniooy
sSpun4 Jayi0 Wouj adueApy
S)UN [BIUBWILIBA0D JaYIO 01 ang
a|qehed salefes paniooy
a|qehed sjoenuo)
a|qedAed slunodoy
San|igerT uaund
S3Lgavii

(srejjop ui sjunowy)

¥TOZ ‘TE 1aquiadaq v

SANNH AYV131H4dOodd
NOILISOd L3N 40 LNIJNILVLS

INVd LNIVS 40 ALID JHL 40 ALIHOHLNY LNINJOTIAIATH ANV ONISNOH

7



G25'859'/8% 8€.'2v2'6TS §89'2.7'Z$ ££8'2/9'8v$ 692'0.2'LT$
TST'€2P'S8 896'v.2'02 9vE'v6Y'C 159'9TZ 9V 98T LEY'9T
v1€'se2' (ogz'ze0'T) (199'12) 281'951'2 €80'ce8
(/88'689'1T) (STS'192'T) (£88'617/) (292'T%9) 282'€96
(69T'€65'E) (5T5'192'1T) (288'672) (292'T%9) (000'076)
Z82'€06'T - - - Z82'€06'T
192'G26'S 582'622 922'8z. 676'260'C (66T'0ET)
(zvs'Tes) (1959/1T) T/0'S2E (z8v'€/2'T) 0EP'€0E
(8ve9LT) - - (8vc'9LT) -
(952'vS2) (gz¥'9z2) (9e8'1) (€98') (zeT'02)
€G/'€GE'T STS'T92'T - S¥6'28 £62'6
(zev'oLl) - - (zTe'82) (ozT'2vl)
(ov2'tT2'T) (ov2'112'T) - - -
(L67'6€6'2) - (g0T‘0T9) (z6£'621'2) -
299'112 - GZE'TT 11088 092'8TT
062'9e€ 68 859°'/T 9¥0'€6 16¥'522
1£6'698 - 662'/GT - 2€9'CTL
G60'€S.'T - 0£.'0S9 G9E'20T'T -
€08'91L'y 9178'S0Y GST'e0v TEV'TLE Y (629'cep)
266°'/82'CT ¥2£'6€€'C 6¥2'0T9 602'862'6 0TZ'0v0'T
¥55'98G'y Z6Y'00€'T 0TE'eET 25.'250'e -
822'199'/ Z£8'8€0'T 6£6'9.€ LSY'SrZ'9 -
0TZ'0v0'T - - - 0TZ'0¥0'T
S6/'7E0'ST 0LT'SV.'C YOV'€T0'T 079'699'ET 185909
¥8€'28 - - - ¥8£'28
TTY'2S6'LTS 0.T'SvL'C$ YO¥'€T0'T$ 0v9'699'€T$ L6T'vZS$
spunH asudiaug asudiaug asudiaug asudiaug
Areaudoid plauad VHaH S107 VyeH Bunjred voH ueo vydH
[elo

spun4 asudiaiug - saniAdy adAl-ssauisng

‘SJUBWIAle]S [e1ouRUL 3say) Jo Med JelBajul ue are sajou BulAuedwodse ay

T€ 1oquiaded ‘NOILISOd 13N VL0l
(42 910N) parelsay-T Arenuer ‘NOILISOd L3N TVLOL

NOILISOd 13N NI 3ONVHO

sJajsuel] [e10|
QO siajsuel]
u| siajsuel]

SI8JSuURI] pue SUONNQLIUOD 310J8g SWOodU|

(sasuadx3) senuanay Huneladouop elo
S19SSY JO 1UBWaINaY U0 SSO
uoneladQ Aujioe4 wawyedy pue Bupped jo s1so) bunelado-uoN
anuanay |eluswulanobiaul
asuadx3 [eyusawulanobiaiu|
abebliol uo 1Salau|
spuog uo 1saliau|
SJUBWISAAU| JO anfeA Jred ul (9sealdaq) asealou|
sbujure3 1sal1a1u|
:9WO0OU| JUBWIISBAU|
selo bunelado
Ana7 pue suawalou| xe| Auadoid
(S3SNIIX3) STINNIATYH ONILYHIJONON

(SSOT) IWODNI ONILYHIHO

sasuadx3 HuneladQ [e1ol
uoneaidaqg
uonelado Aujioe4 wawedy pue Bupied o S1S0D
swelboid ueo usawdopaad

SASNIdX3 ONILVHIdO

sanuanay buneladQ felo
Sue0T UO pauled 1salau|
S90INISS pue S9jesS ‘saa-

S3ANNINATH ONILVHIdO

(sre|jop ul syjunowy)
PTOZ 'TE 1aquwiadaq papul JesA ay} Jo4
SANNd AdV131dd0dd

NOILISOd L3N dNN4 NI SIONVHO ANV SISNIJX3 ‘SINNIAIY 40 LNINTLVLS

1NVd LNIVS 40 ALIO 3HL 40 ALIHOHLNY LNINJOTIAIATH ANV ONISNOH

48



"SjuaWIaYels [eroureuly asay) Jo Lied JeiBajur ue ae sajou BulAuedwodde ay |

panunuod
662°059'82$ TLT°L18°€$ T6E726$ £v5'860°LT$ 760°0T8'9%
580'870'62$ 81€'821'S$ 8G0'6T8% Tv9'/8L'9T$ 890'€T0'9$
(982°26€) (Y0 TT9'T) €€€'S0T 206'0TE 920'.6L
(820°269) (8£029T'T) 269'79 £v0'66 5/2'90€
299'LTC - SZETT 1,088 092'8TT
(1€8°22) - (9€8'T) (€98'S) (zeT'02)
(500°2L2) (500°2L2) - - -
(952'56) (952'56) - - -
(2L2'682) (L21'682) - - -
126'SE - 126'SE - -
(982'6L) - - (982'6L) -
09T'T2 - - - 091°T2
¥8€'20€ - 282'6T STT'96 186'98T
(552'128'9) Z€0'8YS (816'TT9) (698'208'9) -
(816°TTS) - (816°TTS) - -
(29L'%92°'T) - - (29L'%92°'T) -
(919°€82) - - (919'€82) -
(000°0€8'T) - - (000°0€8'T) -
(000°0T2T) - - (000°0T2'T) -
(870°52) - - (870'52) -
(298'%85) - - (298'%85) -
(v66°L7T'6) (€T1'880°6) - (185'65) -
(008°2LS) (008°2LY) (000°00T) - -
021'282'T 021'282'T - - -
0T9'0L5°2 0T9'025°2 - - -
STS'T92'T STS'T92'T - - -
£66'079 (ST5'192'T) Zr1'85 160'€28 692'120'T
(zev'oLl) - - (z1e'82) (ozt'2yl)
8€7'26 - - 51628 €626
8€9'G9L'T - 0€2'059 806'VTT'T -
(69T°€65'€) (§15'192'T) (288'6172) (L9L'T19) (000‘076)
282'€06'T - - - 282'€06'T
S0S'€LE - - £2€'562 Z81'8.L
1€6'698 - 662'LST - 2€9'2TL
¥00'G2S'9 v.v'v9T LTV'v65 TEY'96T'9 (815°0€9)
(852°Le¥TT) (8687172 (286°8TY) (5L0°€ST°2) (862°05'T)
0€0'98 0€0'98 - - -
2€T'9.8'L1$ Tre'e6S'cS YOv'€T0'T$ 90L'6VE'€TS 08'616%
spun4 asudiaug asudiaug asudiaug asudiaug
Aresudoid playuad VaH SYo vuH Bunired voH ueoT vyH

elol

spun4 asudiaiuz - SaMAIDY odAl-ssauisng

TE Jaqwadaq ‘SINITVAINOT HSYD ANV HSYOD

pajelsay ‘T Arenuer ‘SINITVAINOT HSVO ANV HSVYO

SLNITVAINOT HSVYD ANV HSVO NI (3SY3403a) ISYIHONI L3N

sanARdY Bunsanul oy (pasn) papinoid ysed 18N
SJUBWISAAU JO aNfeA Jred ay} ul (8sealdaq) asealou)
934 90IAI9S JUBWISAAU|
2a/I9SaY JUBWade|day pue MoI1ds]
SaAI9SaY Juswade|day pue anasay bBunelado
(39N) susoda@ Mo1os3 Xe| pue aoueInsu|
S)UN022Y JBYIO pue ssodaq Andes
PIOS S8NLNJ8S JUBWISaAU]
S9NLNJAS JUBWISSAU] JO aseydind
PaAI92aY SPUSPIAIQ PuUe 1Saiau|

S3AILIAILOV ONILSIANI WOHd SMO1d HSVD

sanAndy Buioueul4 parejay pue [ended 1o} (paSN) PapInoId ysed 19N
spuog xel panwi]
spuog anuanay
spuog uonefiiqo [elauan
:1g9Q Uo pred 1sasau|
spuog anuanay
spuog uonefiiqo [elauan
:sanuNyeN 1gaQ uo pred fediound
Buipjing uey Jayi0 siuswanoidwi
saimonns pue Buipjing
juawdinbg
sjassy [ende) Jo uononisuo) pue uonsinbay 10y sjuswhed
1gaq wua1-Buor uo syuswAed rediduud
SaAI9SaY WOJ} SPaadoid
199Q w91 -BuoT Jo 9oUBNSS| WOI) SPIF0IH
paneday syels fended
SIILIAILOY ONIONVNIF 31V13d ANV TV1LIdYO WOdd SMOTd HSVD

sanANdY Buroueul eydesuon Joj (pasn) papinoid ysed 18N
asuadx3 [eyuswulanobiaiul
anuanay [ejuswuianobiaiul
suawaloul xe] Auadoid
spun4 18yl 03 INQ sIajsuel |
spun4 1810 Woy U] Sajsuel]
spun4 1aylQ 0} ape|N adUeAPY Jo Juaweday
paneaay syels Buresado
SIILIAILOY ONIONVNIH TVLIdVONON NOYd SMOTd HSYO

sanAndy Bunesado 10 (pasn) papiroid ysed 19N
slalddns o} sjuswAied
sidieoay Bunesado Jayio
SIaMOII0g/SIBWOISND Wolj sidiesay
S3ILIAILOY ONILVYIdO NOYd SMOTd HSYO

(srejjop ui sjunowy)

¥T0Z 'TE J18quiadaQ papul Jeaj ay) Jod
SANNd AdV131dd0dd

SMOTd HSVD 40 INJNILVLS

INVd INIVS 40 ALID FHL 40 ALIYOHLNY LNIFWNDOTIAIATYH ANV ONISNOH

49



"SjuaWIaYels [eroureuly asay) Jo Lied JeiBajur ue ae sajou BulAuedwodde ay |

299'LT2 - SZe'TT 1,088 092'8TT
8V€'9.T$ - 0% - 0% 8V€'9LT$ - 0%
662'059'82$ T.TL18'€$ T6E726$ €75'860°LT$ 760'018'9%
S8T'T0C - - S8T'T0C -
§880L€ - §880L€ - -
T/8'79€ - T/8'79€ - -
98 LLEC - - 9v8'LLE'C -
70E'979°C - - 70€'979'2 -
670'095 - - - 610'095
795°L€0'S 0L2'218'€ 19€'8LT 126'T70'T -
S65'T60°LT T 892'0T 182'T€8'0T §70'052'9
700'G25'9% [ARTTZS LT7'v65$ TE9'96T 9% (815°0€5%)
T02'8LL'T (zLeTYT) 29Z'T6T 002'528'T (688°96)
(¥0T'291) - - (egezsT) (152'6)
T2v'S6 06088 SE0'T - 962'9
(€90°29¢) 8G.'GT - (968'7) (5z6°2L8)
218'260°L 218'260°L - - -
8eT'€T 8eT'€T - - -
(6TT'207'6) (656'785'8) (e80'e) (69€'052) (802'82)
9eL'L 9eL'L - - -
(9sg'6) - - - (9sg'6)
CIY'STT - - - CIY'STT
(T66'8ST) - - - (T66'8ST)
992'€€0'2 - - - 992'€€0'2
(ezz'om) - - - (ezz'om)
(zov'9Ly) (6€5'78) - (ez6'16€) -
¥55'98G'Y 267'00€'T ore'eee 252'250' -
(026'8L5'T) - - 686'TL (606'099'T)
€08'9VL'Y 9v8'S0Y SST'E0V TEV'TLEY (629°cey)
spun4 asudiaug asudiaug asudiaug asudiaug
Aresudoid playuad VaH SYo vuH Bunired voH ueoT vyH
[e1o.L

spun4 asudiaiuz - SaMAIDY odAl-ssauisng

SJUBWISAAU] JO AN[eA e Ul aBueyd
SJOSSY JO JUBWAINAY UO SSOT
S3ILIAILOY ONIONVNIA ANV TVLIdVD ‘ONILSIANI HSYONON

sjus[eAinb3 yseo pue yseo [eloL

SouBUBIUIRIN PUR SUORISdO puUOg SNUBASY 10} USeD PaloLIsay

SoueUBIUIRIN pUR suoneladO puog Xel pajwi 1oy YseD paroLisay

90IAI9S 199Q PUOE XeL PSNWIT 10} YseD paloLisay

95 1980 puog uoneblqO [e1ausD 10j ysed palotIsay

90IAISS 148 pUOg dNUBASY 10} YSeD PaloLIsay

S93ISNIL UIM SIUSLISSAU| pUe Ysed

S1uaby [edsid i ysed

19INSEaIL UMM SJUBWISBAU| pue ysed
SINITVAINOI HSYD ANV HSVOD 40 STiviaa

El 4

sanAndy BunesadQ 10} (pasn) papiroid yseD 19N

syuawisnipy [eloL
s)un [eyuswulanoh Jayjo 01 enp ul (eseaidap) asealou]
a|eAed sjoenu02 Ul (BSeaIdap) asealdu)
anuanal pauleaun Ul (8sealdap) asealou]
a|qefed abebuow ul (esealdsp) asealou|
a|qeAed saueles paniode ul (asealdap) asealou)
a|gqeAed s)unodde ul (8sealdap) asealou|
sway predaid u asealdap (asealoul)
s)un [eyuswuIaAofh 1aylo woly anp asealdap (aseasour)
o[esal Joj pjay pue| ul asealdsp (asealou])
SUBO| UO 9|qeAIadal 1SaIalul PanIdJe Ul 9sealdsp (asealoul)
a|qeAIada) SUBO| Ul 8sealdap (asealau])
9|qeAIadal SJuBWISSasSe Juanbulep ul asesldap (esealour)
9|geAI89] SJUNODJE. Ul aSealdap (Isealou])
asuadx3 uonernaidag
SUBO| 3|q1199]|0dUN 10} SoUBMOJ[e Ul (8SBa109p) asealdu]
:sanAndy Bunesado oy (pasn)
papinoid yse 189N 01 awoou| Bunerado sjiouodsy 01 sjuswisnlpy
(ss07) awoou| Bunesado
SIILIAILOY ONILYHIdO HO4 (a3sn)
d3dINOdd HSVYOD L3N OL JNODNI ONILVHIdO 40 NOILVITIONOD3Y

(srejjop ui sjunowy)

¥T0Z 'TE J18quiadaQ papul Jeaj ay) Jod
SANNd AdV131dd0dd

SMOTd HSVD 40 INJNILVLS

INVd INIVS 40 ALID FHL 40 ALIYOHLNY LNIFWNDOTIAIATYH ANV ONISNOH

50



HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL

SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
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Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide
Statement of Activities

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

moow>

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

General Obligation Bonds Issued by the City of Saint Paul for HRA Programs
Tax Increment Financing Districts

Conduit Debt Obligations

Deficit - Net Position of Governmental Activities

(Continued)

51



HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL
SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

Reporting Entity

The Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota, (HRA) is a public
agency established pursuant to Minn. Laws 1947, ch. 487, as codified at Minn. Stat. ch. 469, to
undertake urban renewal programs. These programs strive to redevelop the residential,
commercial, and industrial areas of the City of Saint Paul (City) and to provide adequate jobs, a
sound fiscal base, and a variety of affordable housing for City residents. The HRA is governed by a
seven-member Board of Commissioners consisting of the members of the City Council.

The HRA was reorganized during 1978 and 1979. This reorganization consisted of the following:
A.  The HRA employees became employees of the City (Note 5.G.).
B.  The Public Housing Agency was spun off and became a separate governmental entity.

C. The HRA and the City entered into an agreement, effective January 1, 1979, whereby the
City agreed to perform administrative and accounting services for the HRA.

The HRA, for financial reporting purposes, includes all funds for which the HRA is financially
accountable. Financial accountability was determined on the basis of selection of the governing
body, ability to impose will, a financial benefit/burden relationship, and fiscal dependency
including approval of budgets, tax levies, and bonded debt issuance. In applying the above
financial accountability criteria, it has been determined that there is a component unit of the HRA.

Also, in applying the financial accountability criteria, it has been determined that the HRA is a
component unit of the City of Saint Paul and is, therefore, included in the City’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. The HRA’s Board of
Commissioners consists of the members of the City Council. The City also has the ability to
impose its will on the HRA since City staff are responsible for the day-to-day management of the
HRA. The City gives final substantive approval to HRA budgets and HRA tax levies. The
financial data of the HRA is blended into the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
Copies of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014, can be obtained from the Financial Services Office, Accounting Section, 700
City Hall, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55102.

Blended Component Unit. The following component unit has been presented as a blended
component unit because the component unit’s governing body is the same as the governing body of
the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint Paul (HRA) and the HRA has
operational responsibility for the component unit.

Penfield Apartments, LLC
Penfield Apartments, LLC is the developer and owner of a 253 unit market rate apartment complex,

with structured parking and a grocery store located in the complex. It is a special purpose entity
LLC, financed primarily by a HUD guaranteed mortgage, and is wholly owned by a single entity.
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HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014
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the HRA. The City of Saint Paul’s HRA Board of Commissioners act as the Penfield Apartments,
LLC board. Separate financial statements for the Penfield Apartments, LLC can be obtained from
the City of Saint Paul, Department of Planning and Economic Development, 1400 City Hall Annex,

25 West Fourth Street, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55102.

Joint Venture

The Minneapolis/Saint Paul Housing Finance Board (the Board) was established in accordance with
a Joint Powers Agreement entered into between the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the
City of Saint Paul (HRA) and the former Minneapolis Community Development Agency (MCDA),
and accepted by the cities of Minneapolis and Saint Paul under State of Minnesota laws. The
governing bodies of the HRA and the City of Minneapolis each appoint three of the six members of
the Board. The Board was created for the public purpose of providing decent, safe, sanitary, and
affordable housing to the residents of the City of Saint Paul and the City of Minneapolis. The
powers exercised by the Board include the power to undertake financing programs to implement
individual components of the housing plan for each city and to issue revenue bonds to finance such
programs. All bonds are special limited obligations of the Board and shall be payable only out of
funds specifically pledged for each issue. Total net position at December 31, 2014, was

$10,951,578. The 2014 operations resulted in a decrease of $1,529,824 to net position.

During 2014, total distributions of $2,030,000 were made from the Board to Minneapolis/Saint

Paul.

Upon dissolution of the Board, all properties acquired by the Board and any surplus monies shall be
distributed to the HRA and the City of Minneapolis in the proportion and otherwise pursuant to
directions provided in the related indenture of trust or other bond documents. If properties acquired
by the Board and any surplus monies are not traceable to a particular bond issue or the indenture is
silent as to distribution of the assets upon discharge of the issue, the assets shall be distributed on
the basis of the amount of funds each entity has contributed that would affect those assets. The
respective percentage shares of the HRA and the City of Minneapolis in the Board’s assets,
liabilities, and equity were not determined at December 31, 2014. There has been no investment
made by the HRA in the joint venture. Thus, the financial statements do not reflect an equity
interest in the joint venture. Complete financial statements of the Board can be obtained from the
City of Minneapolis Community Planning and Economic Development Department at Suite 200,

Crown Roller Mill, 105 Fifth Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55401.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the HRA have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for

establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
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A summary of the significant accounting policies follows:

A.

Fund Accounting

The HRA'’s accounting is organized on the basis of funds. Fund accounting is designed to
demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions
related to certain government functions or activities. Each fund is a separate accounting
entity having its own assets, liabilities, equities, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. Government financial resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled. The HRA uses the City’s finance system and a new
finance system was implemented on January 1, 2014. All HRA funds are reported as major
funds. A description of the funds follows:

Governmental Funds

HRA General Fund - accounts for all financial resources of the HRA, except those accounted
for in another fund.

HRA Grants Special Revenue Fund - accounts for specific revenue sources, primarily federal
and state grants, which are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes. The
City implemented a new finance system on January 1, 2014, and under the new fund structure
the accounting for foreclosure prevention grants was moved to the HRA Loan Enterprise
Fund and the accounting for the Housing and Urban Development (HUD) grants was moved
to the City’s HUD Grant Special Revenue Fund.

HRA Debt Service Fund - accounts for the financing and payments made on the HRA’s long-
term general debt.

HRA Tax Increment Capital Projects Fund - accounts for the resources segregated for the
purpose of financing capital projects, primarily in Saint Paul’s tax increment financing
districts.

HRA Development Capital Projects Fund — accounts for multi-year development projects that
are locally financed, primarily with loan enterprise funds and the 2007 Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds issued by the City of Saint Paul.

Proprietary Funds

HRA Parking Enterprise Fund - accounts for the HRA’s parking facility operations that are
financed primarily by parking fees.

HRA Loan Enterprise Fund - accounts for loans issued and services related to housing and
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business assistance. The City implemented a new finance system on January 1, 2014 and
under the new fund structure, the Lofts at Farmers Market and Penfield Apartments are now
in separate HRA enterprise funds.

HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund - accounts for the operations and debt service for the Lofts at
Farmers Market.

HRA Penfield Enterprise Fund - accounts for the operations and debt service for the Penfield
Apartments.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the activities of the HRA. Governmental activities,
which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and user
charges. Interfund transactions within governmental activities and interfund transactions
within business-type activities have been removed from these statements.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers
who use services provided by a given function and (2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes
and other revenues not properly included among program revenues are reported as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. All
HRA funds are considered major funds and are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements section of the basic financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized in the year for which they are levied. Grants and contributions are recognized as
revenue when eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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Revenues

Governmental fund revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become
susceptible to accrual--that is, when they become both measurable and available to finance
the expenditures of the fiscal period. “Available” means collectible within the current period
or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Revenues for
nonexchange transactions are recognized based on the principal characteristics of the
revenue. Exchange transactions are recognized as revenue when the exchange occurs.

Nonexchange Transactions

Derived tax revenue transactions result from assessments imposed by governments on
exchange transactions. Hotel-motel tax is reported as revenue when the underlying exchange
occurs and the receivable amount is available.

Imposed nonexchange transactions result from assessments by governments on
nongovernmental entities and individuals. Property taxes are imposed nonexchange
transactions. Revenues from property taxes are recognized in the period for which they were
levied to the extent they are collected in the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Property taxes receivable but not available are
reported as deferred inflows of resources and will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year
that they become available. The HRA considers these revenues as available if they are
collected within 60 days after year-end.

Government-mandated nonexchange transactions occur when a government at one level
provides resources to a government at another level and requires that government to use them
for a specific purpose. The provider government establishes purpose restrictions and may
also establish time requirements. Federal and state grants mandating the HRA perform
particular programs are government-mandated nonexchange transactions. Revenues are
recognized when the eligibility and time requirements are met, usually when the
corresponding HRA expenditure is incurred, using the guidelines of the legal and contractual
requirements of the individual programs.

Voluntary nonexchange transactions result from legislative or contractual agreements, such as
entitlements and donations. The provider may establish purpose restrictions and eligibility
requirements. Revenues are recognized in the year to which they apply according to statute
or contract. Contributions from individuals and miscellaneous revenues are also considered
voluntary nonexchange transactions and are generally recognized when received in cash
because they are usually not measurable until received. Tax credits paid by the state
(included in intergovernmental revenue) are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year that they
become available. The HRA considers revenues from tax credits paid by the state as
available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.
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Exchange Transactions

Exchange transactions include revenues such as interest earned and fees, sales, and services.
Interest earned is reported as revenue when it becomes both measurable and available to
finance expenditures of the fiscal period. The HRA considers this revenue as available if it is
collected within 60 days after year-end. Fees, sales, and services are reported as revenue
when received in cash because they are usually not measurable until received.

Expenditures

Expenditures are recorded under the modified accrual method in the accounting period in
which the fund liability is incurred, with the exception of principal and interest on general
long-term debt, which is recognized when due, and claims and judgments, which are
recognized when the obligations are due and payable.

D. Proprietary Fund Financial Statement Presentation

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and operating expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenue of the HRA Loan Enterprise Fund is the payment of interest from loan recipients and
fee revenue from customers who have received loans or grants from the HRA, while the
principal operating expenses are administration, bad debts, and forgivable loans. The
principal operating revenue of the HRA Parking Enterprise Fund is parking fees from parking
ramp customers, while the principal operating expenses are parking operation costs,
administration, and depreciation on capital assets. The principal operating revenue of the
HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund is rent from tenants, while the principal operating expenses are
apartment operating costs and debt service on bonds. The principal operating revenue of the
HRA Penfield Enterprise Fund is rent from tenants, while the principal operating expenses
are apartment operating costs and debt service on the mortgage. All revenues and expenses
not meeting these criteria in each fund are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

E. Cash and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investments pool which is available for use by all HRA funds.
Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed in the financial statements within “Cash and
Investments with Treasurer.” Cash and investments are also maintained by trustees of the
HRA under certain revenue bond indentures.

Investments are reported at fair value on the balance sheet with the exception of
non-negotiable investment contracts, 2a7-like external investment pools, and money market
investments, including commercial paper, banker’s acceptances, and U.S. Treasury and
agency obligations that have a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less.
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These exceptions are reported at amortized cost provided that the fair value of these
investments is not significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer.
All investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments, is reported as
revenue. The fair value of investments is determined using quoted market prices at
December 31, 2014.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the proprietary fund’s cash equivalents are cash
on hand, cash in banks, and highly liquid investments having original maturities (time span
from purchase date to maturity date) of three months or less. Included in the classification of
cash equivalents are cash and investments with treasurer, cash with fiscal agent, cash and
investments with trustees, and restricted cash.

F. Property Taxes

Property tax levies are set by the HRA Board of Commissioners and approved by the City
Council in December of each year and certified to Ramsey County for collection in the
following year. In Minnesota, counties act as collection agents for all property taxes. The
County spreads all levies over taxable assessed property. Taxable assessed property values
are established by Ramsey County and reviewed by the State of Minnesota. In determining
property taxes, estimated market values are converted to tax capacities based on a statutory
rate for each class of property. Property taxes become a lien on taxable property on January 1
in the year of collection and are recorded as receivable by the HRA on that date. Property
taxes may be paid by taxpayers in two equal installments on May 15 and October 15.
Property tax revenue is recognized in the year for which it is levied. Property taxes which
remain unpaid at December 31 are classified as delinquent taxes receivable. In the
governmental funds balance sheet, the delinquent taxes receivable are offset by deferred
inflows of resources, if not collected within 60 days after year-end, because they are not
known to be available to finance current expenditures. In the government-wide financial
statements, delinquent taxes receivable are recognized as revenue.

Property tax increments from the tax increment districts listed in Note 4.C. to the financial
statements are levied by the City but deposited to HRA funds.

G. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of HRA Parking Enterprise Fund revenue and general obligation bonds, and
HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund limited tax bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use
is limited by applicable bond covenants. The revenue bond, general obligation bond, and
limited tax debt service accounts are used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service
payments over the next 12 months. The limited tax bond operations and maintenance
account is used to segregate resources set aside to subsidize potential deficiencies from the
Lofts at Farmers Market operation that could adversely affect debt service payments. The
revenue bond operations and maintenance account is used to segregate resources set aside to

59



HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

Note 2.G. (Continued)

subsidize potential deficiencies from the parking operations that could adversely affect debt
service payments. Program income for the HUD Rental Rehab Program is restricted in the
HRA Loan Enterprise Fund because it may only be used for affordable housing in accordance
with applicable HOME or HOPE program rules.

H. Loans Receivable

Loans have been issued by the HRA to financially assist private developers in various Saint
Paul development projects or to provide housing or commercial rehabilitation financing for
Saint Paul property owners. The loans are secured by property mortgages. Loans receivable
are reported as an asset in the amount of loan proceeds disbursed, less collections on
principal.  An allowance for uncollectible loans, which offsets the total gross loans
receivable, is recognized for the amount of loans receivable for which collection is doubtful
or questionable. This allowance is based on an analysis of credit risk and payment
delinquency. Interest earned on the loans is recognized as revenue. In the HRA Loan
Enterprise Fund, in order to satisfy federal grant reporting requirements, unearned revenue of
an equal amount to restricted grants is also reported on the proprietary funds balance sheet,
and revenues are reported when principal payments are received from the loan recipient.

l. Land Held for Resale

Land is acquired by the HRA for subsequent resale for redevelopment purposes and not as an
investment program. In order to entice development, the land is often resold at prices
substantially lower than the HRA’s cost. Land Held for Resale is reported as an asset at the
net realizable value for all assets acquired before 2009 and at cost of purchase for all assets
purchased after 2008 in the fund which acquired it. Unavailable revenue of an equal amount
is also reported on the respective governmental fund balance sheet. In governmental funds,
in order to satisfy federal grant reporting requirements, land acquired is reported as an
expenditure in the amount of the acquisition cost and as federal revenue for the same amount.
When the land is subsequently sold, miscellaneous program income is recognized for the sale
amount. Future draw downs from the federal government for reimbursement of expenditures
incurred are adjusted by program income available at that date.

In the government-wide financial statements, a write-down of the land to market value is
reported as an expense. Unavailable revenue is eliminated when converting the governmental
funds balance sheet to the governmental activities column on the Statement of Net Position.

J. Leases Receivable

The HRA, as the lessor, entered into a lease agreement with the City of Saint Paul during the
year ended December 31, 2009, through which the HRA is leasing certain improvements
made to the RiverCentre Parking Ramp. The cost of the improvements was financed by the
HRA through the issuance of the RiverCentre Parking Facility Lease Revenue Bonds, Note
Series 2009. The lease is reported as a direct financing lease since the HRA has transferred
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substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the improvements to the City, and
the HRA is financing an in-substance purchase of the improvements by the City. Under the
lease, the City has an option to purchase the improvements at any time prior to the expiration
of the lease for the amount of any remaining outstanding bonds plus $1.

The HRA, as the lessor, entered into a lease agreement with the City of Saint Paul during the
year ended December 31, 2008, through which the HRA will purchase the Jimmy Lee
Recreational Facility from the City of Saint Paul, and then lease it back for 25 years. The
cost of the purchase was financed by the HRA through the issuance of the Jimmy Lee
Recreational Facility Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2008. The lease is reported as a direct
financing lease since the HRA has transferred substantially all of the risks and benefits of
ownership of the facility to the City, and the HRA is financing an in-substance purchase of
the facility by the City. The lease payments made by the City will be sufficient to service the
Recreational Facility Lease Bonds principal and interest when due. Under the lease, the City
may acquire the interest in the Jimmy Lee Recreational Facility for $1 at the end of the term
of the Lease.

The present value of the total lease payments to be received under the lease agreements are
recognized as leases receivable in the HRA Debt Service Fund. Deferred inflows of
resources in an amount equal to the leases receivable is also reported in the HRA Debt
Service Fund since none of the receivable is considered to be available to finance
expenditures of the current period. In the government-wide financial statements, this
deferred inflows of resources is eliminated when converting the governmental funds balance
sheet to the governmental activities column on the Statement of Net Position.

K.  Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, pedestrian skyway bridges, parking ramp
structures and parking lots, equipment, and construction in progress are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements and in the applicable proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are not
reported on the governmental funds balance sheet. All capital assets are reported at cost if
purchased or constructed, or at estimated fair market value on the date acquired if received as
a gift or contribution. The reported amount of the capital assets is not reflective of the current
value. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of
the assets constructed.

Land is not depreciated. The equipment is depreciated over a ten-year useful life. The
parking lots are depreciated over a 15-year useful life. Buildings, parking ramps, and
pedestrian skyway bridges are depreciated over a 40-year useful life. Construction in
progress is not depreciated. The depreciation method used is straight-line.
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Capital assets are defined by the HRA as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of two
years and individual cost exceeding the following thresholds:

Land any amount
Equipment $ 5,000
Buildings 50,000
Parking ramps 20,000
Pedestrian skyway bridges 20,000

L. Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenue arises when resources are received by the HRA before it has a legal claim
to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures.
In subsequent periods, when revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the HRA has a
legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed and revenue is
recognized. This is true for both the government-wide and the fund financial statements.

M. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund Statements of Net Position. Bond discounts and
premiums, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond discounts
and premiums during the current period. The face amount of debt is reported as other
financing sources for governmental funds.

N. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expenses/expenditure) until then. The government had no item that qualifies for reporting
in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The government has the following items, which arise only under a modified accrual basis of
accounting, that qualify for reporting in this category. Accordingly, these items, various
unavailable revenues, are reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from seven sources: property tax levy and
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increments, investment interest receivable, accounts receivable, note and loans receivable,
lease receivable, and land held for resale. These amounts are recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available.

O. Net Position

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements,
net position includes three components. First is the amount for Net Investment in Capital
Assets. Second, restricted net position reports amounts that have restrictions imposed by
parties outside the HRA (such as creditors, grantors, or federal or state laws). Finally, the
difference between total net position and the first two components is unrestricted net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the HRA’s policy
to use restricted resources first, if legally permissible, then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.

P. Fund Balances - Governmental Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report components of fund balance to
provide information about fund balance availability for appropriation. Nonspendable fund
balance represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, or
are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restricted fund balance
represents amounts to be spent for specific purposes as determined by enabling legislation or
imposed by grantors or debt covenants; used before unrestricted fund balance when an
expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available.

Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a board resolution of the HRA Board of Commissioners. Once the
resolution is passed, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until the HRA
Board of Commissioners passes a resolution removing or revising the limitation, or the
specific fund balance amount is spent. The HRA Board of Commissioners is the highest
level of decision-making authority for the HRA.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the HRA for
HRA spending purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The HRA
Board of Commissioners has assigned fund balance when appropriating fund balance to cover
a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated
budget. Assignments may be removed without an additional resolution being passed.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. When any combination of
committed, assigned, and unassigned resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s
policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, then unassigned resources as needed.
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Q.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues and expenditures or
expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in
the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers.
Transfers between governmental funds and transfers between proprietary funds are
eliminated in the government-wide financial statements.

Restatement of Net Position/Fund Balance

On January 1, 2014, the net position for the governmental and business-type activities was
adjusted for the new fund structure related to the City’s implementation of the new finance
system. On January 1, 2014, the net position for the governmental activities was restated by
$3,819,387 due to a prior year adjustment that reclassified a notes payable in the HRA Debt
Service Fund to a pay-as-you-go tax increment note in the HRA Tax Increment Capital
Projects Fund. The details of these changes are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Net Position, January 1, 2014, as previously reported $ (34,725,758) $ 85,172,877
Fund Structure Change (3,120,079) 250,274
Notes Payable 3,819,387
Net Position, January 1, 2014, as restated $ (34,026,450) $ 85,423,151
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On January 1, 2014, the fund balance for the governmental funds and the net position for the
proprietary funds were adjusted for the new fund structure. On January 1, 2014, the net
position for the HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund was restated by $35,923 due to a prior period
adjustment affecting accounts payable, and the net position for the HRA Penfield Enterprise
Fund was restated by $214,349 due to a prior period adjustment affecting construction in
progress. The details of these changes are as follows:

HRA
HRA Development HRA Loan HRA Lofts HRA Penfield
Grants Fund Capital Fund Enterprise Fund Enterprise Fund Enterprise Fund

Fund Balance/Net Position, January 1, 2014

as Previously Reported $ - $ 13,053,661 $ 38,956,230 $ - $

Fund Structure Change 462,298 (3,582,363) (22,519,044) 2,458,423 20,060,619

Accounts Payable Adjustment - - - 35,923

Construction in Progress Adjustments - - - - 214,349
Fund Balance/Net Position, January 1, 2014

as Restated $ 462,298 $ 9,471,298 $ 16,437,186 $ 2,494,346 $ 20,274,968

3. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

The Governmental Fund Balance Sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances —
total governmental funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

The third element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds
and notes payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.” The details of this $(71,470,117) difference are as follows:

Governmental Activity premium on bonds payable $  (1,103,050)
Governmental activity net bonds payable (55,570,000)
Governmental activity notes payable (13,930,515)
Accrued interest payable (866,552)

Net Adjustment to Decrease Fund Balance - Total
Governmental Funds to Arrive at Net Position - Governmental Activities $ (71,470,117)
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B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of
Activities

The Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the
Government-Wide Statement of Activities.

The third element of that reconciliation explains that “the issuance of long-term debt
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of principal
on long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
premiums and discounts when debt is issued, whereas, premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized in the Statement of Activities. The details of this $35,787,022 difference are

as follows:
2014 amortization of premium $ 100,792
2014 principal payments on bonds 36,920,000
2014 principal payments on notes 772,841
2014 issuance of bonds (1,995,000)
2014 premium on bonds (11,611)

Net Adjustment to Increase Net Changes in Fund Balances -
Total Governmental Funds to Arrive at Changes in Net
Position of Governmental Activities $ 35,787,022

4, Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The HRA followed these procedures in establishing the 2014 budget:

The Executive Director presented a proposed budget to the HRA Board of
Commissioners for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1, 2014. This
budget included proposed expenditures and other uses and the means of financing
them. Upon approval by the HRA Board, the Executive Director submitted the budget
to the Mayor of the City of Saint Paul who submitted this budget to the City Council
for consideration, approval, and certification. All budget amendments that authorize
an increase in total fund spending require approval by the HRA Board of
Commissioners. Any amendments transferring budgeted amounts between activities
within the same fund require administrative approval by the HRA Executive Director
and the City Budget Director.

All annual governmental fund budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Multi-year governmental fund budgets are utilized
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in the grants special revenue fund and the capital projects funds.

Unexpended appropriation balances lapse at the end of the fiscal year in the annual
governmental fund budgets. Upon HRA Board approval, outstanding encumbrances at the
end of the fiscal year are re-appropriated in the following year in annual governmental fund
budgets. Unexpended appropriation balances do not lapse at the end of the fiscal year in the
multi-year governmental fund budgets.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders are recorded, is used. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end represent the estimated amount of the expenditures ultimately to
result if unperformed contracts in process at year-end are completed. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end were not reported as expenditures in the financial statements and,
therefore, are included as part of assigned fund balance.

Formal automated budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year. The legal level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures and
other financing uses cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the fund level.
Appropriations are controlled administratively at the project/activity level within multi-year
budgeted funds. Governmental and proprietary funds with annually adopted budgets are
controlled administratively at the accounting unit level and within the following major object
levels of expenditure: debt service, services and supplies, equipment, and transfers out.
Management is authorized to spend within the above stated administration limits without an
HRA Board approved budget amendment or a budget amendment approved by the HRA
Executive Director and the City Budget Director.

Spending budgets are controlled by encumbering requisitions and purchase orders.
Encumbering instruments which exceed available appropriations are not authorized until
additional appropriations are made available. There were no significant encumbrances for the
annually budgeted funds at the end of 2014.

B. General Obligation Bonds Issued by the City of Saint Paul for HRA Programs

During 1995, the City of Saint Paul issued Midway Marketplace Tax Increment General
Obligation Bonds, Series 1995A, in the amount of $7,660,000. Proceeds from the Series
1995A bonds were used to provide financing for certain public redevelopment costs in an
area referred to as Midway Marketplace. During 2005, the City issued the
Snelling-University Tax Increment Refunding Bonds, Series 2005C in the amount of
$5,130,000 which refunded the 1995 Bonds. During 2014, the City issued Snelling-
University Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014D in the amount of
$1,995,000 which refunded the 2005 bonds. The bonds have a City general obligation pledge
but are to be retired using tax increments from the HRA’s Snelling-University District and
certain shortfall payments from the project developers as defined in the development
agreements.
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The outstanding Series 2014D bonds are reported as a liability in the governmental activities
column of the HRA’s Government-Wide Statement of Net Position (Note 5.F.).

During 1998, the City of Saint Paul issued Block 39 Tax Increment General Obligation
Bonds, Series 1998A and Series 1998B, in the amount of $21,255,000 and $18,745,000,
respectively. Proceeds from the Series 1998A and Series 1998B were used to finance the
acquisition of Block 39 properties in the downtown area and to construct a parking facility
and retail space. During 2009, the City issued the Block 39 Tax Increment Refunding
Bonds, Series 2009G and 2009H, in the amount of $20,695,000 and $8,655,000,
respectively, which refunded the 1998 Bonds. The bonds have a City general obligation
pledge but are to be retired using tax increments from the HRA’s Block 39 Lawson/Arena
District and revenues from the parking facility. The outstanding Series 2009G and 2009H
bonds are reported as a liability in the Parking Enterprise Fund and in the business-type
activities column of the HRA’s Government-Wide Statement of Net Position (Note 5.F.).

In March 2010, the City of Saint Paul issued Koch Mobil Tax Increment Refunding Bonds,
Series 2010A, in the amount of $2,670,000. The proceeds of the 2010 bonds were used to
currently refund Koch Mobil Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2007B. The bonds are to be
retired using HRA tax increment revenue from the Koch Mobil Tax Increment District. The
City has issued a general obligation pledge on the 2010 bonds. The outstanding Series 2010A
bonds are reported as a liability in the governmental activities column of the HRA’s
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position (Note 5.F.).

In August 2011, the City of Saint Paul issued US Bank Tax Increment Refunding Bonds,
Series 2011F and 2011G, in the amount of $3,060,000 and $8,870,000, respectively, which
refunded the 2001 bonds. The bonds have a City general obligation pledge but are to be
retired using tax increments from the HRA’s US Bank Riverfront Renaissance District. The
outstanding Series 2011F and 2011G bonds are reported as a liability in the governmental
activities column of the HRA’s Government-Wide Statement of Net Position (Note 5.F).
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C.  TaxIncrement Financing Districts
Pursuant to state law, the following tax increment financing districts have been established in
Saint Paul and are administered by the HRA.

Outstanding

Year Duration of Long-Term Debt
District Established District (Including Advances)

83 Spruce Tree Centre/Metz Bakery Area 1987 26 years $ -
87 Riverfront 1987 26 years -
100 Neighborhood Business Development -

Scattered Sites 1988 26 years 2,460,000
135 Snelling - University 1990 26 years 1,995,000
193 Hubbard Site 1997 26 years 2,061
194 1919 University 1997 26 years -
212 Block 4 Minnesota Mutual 1997 26 years -
213 Block 39 Lawson/Arena 1997 26 years 21,525,000
215 Superior Street Cottages 1998 26 years -
224 North Quadrant Phase 1 - Essex 2000 26 years 858,000
225 Riverfront Renaissance-Upper Landing 2001 26 years 16,812,458
228 Emerald Park — Emerald and Metro 2002 26 years 5,800,000
232 Straus Building 2002 26 years -
233 North Quadrant Expansion 1 - Dakota 2003 26 years 1,021,000
234 Phalen Village 2001 26 years 2,590
236 J.J. Hill 2001 26 years 3,072,000
237 Osceola Park 2002 26 years -
240 Bridgecreek Senior Place 2003 26 years -
241 North Quadrant Phase 2 2004 26 years 1,081,000
243 Shepard - Davern Owner Occupied 2003 26 years -
245 Shepard - Davern Senior Rental 2003 26 years -
248 Koch Mobil 2004 26 years 2,659,887
257 Payne Phalen 2005 26 years 2,759
260 North Quadrant - Sibley 2006 26 years -
261 Riverfront Renaissance - US Bank 2006 26 years 10,578,482
262 Riverfront Renaissance - Drake Marble 2006 26 years 1,183,000
263 Riverfront Renaissance - Uncommitted 2006 26 years 994,391
264 Riverfront Renaissance - Llewellyn 2006 26 years 30,692
265 Riverfront Renaissance - HRA 2006 26 years -
266 Emerald Park - Metro 2006 26 years -
267 Emerald Park - Berry 2006 26 years -
268 North Quadrant Expansion 1 - Sibley 2006 26 years -
269 Phalen - Rose Hill 2006 26 years 29,712
271 Carlton Lofts 2007 26 years 33,603
278 Highland Pointe Lofts 2007 26 years 17,851
279 Minnesota Building 2010 26 years -
281 2700 The Avenue 2008 26 years -
282 Minnesota Events District 2009 26 years -
291 Carondelet Village 2011 26 years -
299 Cossetta Project 2011 9 years -
301 Penfield 2012 26 years 178.184
302 Pioneer — Endicott 2012 26 years 31,717
304 Schmidt Brewery 2012 26 years 85,259
305 West Side Flats 2014 26 years 8,589
313 Hamline Station East 2014 26 years 3,662
314 Hamline Station West
317 Custom House/Post Office ggﬂ gg years gggz
East 7™ Bates Senior Housing years '

I . 2014 26 years 2,255

319 2700 University at Gateway Station 2014 26 years ~

Total Outstanding at December 31, 2014 $ 70,477,640
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Total tax capacity amounts and tax increment revenue for these districts in 2014 are as
follows.

Current tax capacity (assessed in 2013, payable in 2014) $20,796,356
Captured tax capacity retained by the HRA $17,443,699
Total Tax increment revenue in 2014 (includes developer shortfall if any) $20,937,706
Total delinquent tax increment receivable at December 31, 2014 $237,335

Conduit Debt Obligations

The HRA has issued Commercial/Industrial Development, Homeownership Mortgage, and
Rental Housing Revenue Bonds to assist developers, businesses, and low-to moderate-income
homeowners in projects which improve the economic and housing conditions of the City.
The bonds are secured by the financed property and are payable solely from the revenues of
the individual commercial/industrial or housing projects. The bonds do not constitute a
charge, lien, or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any property or funds of the HRA, nor
is the HRA subject to any liability thereon. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

Conduit bonds issued subsequent to January 1, 1996, have an outstanding principal balance of
$1.4 billion at December 31, 2014. The aggregate principal amount payable for conduit
bonds issued prior to January 1, 1996, could not be determined; however, their original issue
amounts totaled $2.9 billion. There were 185 conduit bonds issued prior to January 1, 1996,
and 143 conduit bonds issued subsequent to January 1, 1996.

Deficit - Net Position of Governmental Activities

On the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position, the HRA is reporting a negative
unrestricted net position of $31,972,604 but is reporting an overall positive net position of
$6,331,654. The individual governmental funds which form a part of the governmental
activities all have positive fund balances. The deficit was created with the addition of long-
term debt to the government-wide governmental activities. The HRA issues long-term debt
for development purposes and, in many cases, does not acquire or construct HRA-owned
capital assets with the debt proceeds. The debt is to be retired with future revenues, such as
property tax increments or sales taxes. (See Notes 3.A. and 5.F.)

5. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A.

Deposits and Investments

Through agreement with the City, the HRA deposit and investment functions are managed by
the City’s Office of Financial Services, Treasury Section. City policies are applied to the
HRA’s portfolio of deposits and investments.
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)

Deposits

Minn. Stat. 88 118A.02 and 118A.04 authorize the City to designate a depository for
public funds and to invest in certificates of deposit. Minn. Stat. § 118A.03 requires that
all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond, or collateral. The market
value of collateral pledged shall be at least ten percent more than the amount on deposit
at the close of the financial institution’s banking day, not covered by insurance or
bonds.

Authorized collateral includes treasury bills, notes and bonds; issues of U.S.
government agencies; general obligations rated “A” or better, revenue obligations rated
“AA” or better, irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan
Bank; and certificates of deposit. Minnesota statutes require that securities pledged as
collateral be held in safekeeping in a restricted account at the Federal Reserve Bank or
in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution
that is not owned or controlled by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. All
pledged collateral is held in the City’s name at third party institutions.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the
HRA'’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City is authorized to use only those
financial institutions that have been approved by the City Council. The HRA’s
deposits at December 31, 2014 consist of the City cash and investment pool in an
amount of $63,398,241, the parking ramp, Lofts, and Penfield checking accounts in the
amount of $2,740,616, and the Penfield escrow account in the amount of $2,296,948.
The City cash and investment pool is entirely insured or collateralized in the City’s
name at third party institutions. The parking ramps and Lofts checking accounts are
collateralized in the City’s name at third-party institutions.
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(2)

Investments

Minn. Stat. 8§ 118A.04 and 118A.05 generally authorize the following types of
investments as available to the HRA:

(1) securities which are direct obligations or are guaranteed or insured issues of the
United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an
act of Congress, except mortgage-backed securities defined as “high risk” by
Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, sub. 6;

(2) mutual funds through shares of registered investment companies provided the
mutual fund receives certain ratings depending on its investments;

(3) general obligations of the State of Minnesota and its municipalities, and in
certain state agency and local obligations of Minnesota and other states provided
such obligations have certain specified bond ratings by national bond rating
service;

(4) bankers’ acceptances of United States banks;

(5) commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian
subsidiaries that is rated in the highest quality category by two nationally
recognized rating agencies and matures in 270 days or less; and

(6) with certain restrictions, in repurchase agreements, securities lending agreements,
joint powers investment trusts, and guaranteed investment contracts.

In addition, under Minn. Stat. § 469.012, the HRA can invest funds in properties or
securities in which savings banks may legally invest funds which provides broad
investment authority.

The City Council has adopted an investment policy, dated July 9, 2003, which provides
requirements and guidelines for the following:

- Authority and responsibility;

- Administrative and review procedures;

- Credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity return, and avoidance of loss;
- Investments in special programs and projects;

- Short term and longer term investments; and

- Investment manager selection and termination.

Interest Rate Risk - Investments

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The City minimizes its exposure to interest rate risk by
investing in both shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to
maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed
for operations. The City has established maximum guidelines for investment duration.
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Credit Risk - Investments

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a
rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The City’s investment
policy is that each portfolio must be invested in compliance with State of Minnesota
Statute 118A. This statute governs which securities and with what credit ratings the
city can hold in its portfolio and requires a broker certification annually from all
brokers stating that they have read the City policy and will remain compliant with the
statute.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

The custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to
a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of an investment or
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The City’s investment
policy is that credit risk will be minimized by:

- Limiting investments to issues of (or backed by) the U.S. Government, its
agencies or instrumentalities, States and Municipalities.

- Using only those financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries and
advisers approved by the City.

- Diversifying investments so that potential losses on individual securities of a
single issuer will be minimized.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that may be caused by the City’s
investment in a single issuer. It is the City’s policy to diversify investments so that
potential losses on individual securities of a single issuer will be minimized.
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The following table represents the HRA’s investment balances at December 31, 2014, and

information relating to potential investment risks:

Federal Home Loan Bank Bonds
Federal Home Loan Bank Bonds

Trustee Cash

Certificate of Deposit — Highland Bank

Mutual Funds
First American Government Treas. Obligations Fund
Class D
First American Government Treas. Obligations Fund
Class Y

US Bank Money Market Account 5-Ct
Wells Fargo Advantage 100% Treasuries Fund

Total Investments

Deposits:
Parking Ramp Checking Accounts at Saint Paul Banks
Lofts at Farmers Market Checking Accounts
Penfield Apartments, LLC Accounts
Penfield Apartments, LLC Escrow Accounts
City Cash and Investment Pool

Total Deposits
Total Deposits and Investments
N/A - Not applicable

N/R - Not rated
< 5% - Concentration is less than 5% of investments

Concentration

Credit Risk Risk Interest Rate Carrying
Credit Rating Over 5% of Risk (Fair)
Rating Agency Portfolio Maturity Date Value
AA+ S&P 7.21% 11/17/17 $ 532,896
AA+ S&P 14.76% 01/25/28 1,446,738
N/A N/R <5% N/A 644
N/A N/R 7.36% 03/30/19 606,292
N/A N/R 10.39% N/A 769,752
N/A N/R 8.94% N/A 698,063
N/A N/R 9.87% N/A 799,597
N/A N/R 41.47% N/A 2,269,619
8 723601
$ 1,041,927
178,367
1,520,322
2,296,948
63,398,241
_$ 68435805
8 75550406

Deposits - City of Saint Paul Cash and Investment Pool - Additional disclosures required by GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures,” are disclosed on an entity-wide basis in the City of Saint Paul Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2014.

(3) Reconciliation

The above amounts of deposits and investments reconcile to the Government-Wide
Statement of Net Position as follows:

Cash and Investments with Treasurer
Cash with Fiscal Agents
Cash and Investments with Trustees

Restricted Cash for General Obligation Bond Debt Service
Restricted Cash for Revenue Bond Debt Service

Restricted Cash for Limited Tax Bond Debt Service

Restricted Cash for Limited Tax Bond Operations and Maintenance

Restricted Cash for Note Debt Service

Restricted Cash for Revenue Bond Operations and Maintenance

Total
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57,531,543
5,037,564
6,778,908
2,377,846
2,646,304

364,871
370,885
250,300
201,185

$

75,559,406
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(4) Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments

All investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments, is reported
as revenue on the operating statements of both governmental and proprietary funds.
The calculation of realized gains and losses from the sale of investments is independent
of the calculation of the net change in the fair value of investments. Realized gains and
losses on investments that have been held in more than one fiscal year and sold in the
current year may have been recognized as an increase or decrease in the fair value of
investments reported in the prior year. The increase in the fair value of investments
during 2014 was $795,840. This amount takes into account all changes in fair value
(including purchases and sales) that occurred during the year. The unrealized gain on
investments held at December 31, 2014, was $244,803.

B. Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are reported as assets in the following funds at December 31, 2014 (net of

allowances):
HRA Tax Increment Capital Projects Fund $ 756,250
HRA Development Capital Projects Fund 109,519
HRA Parking Enterprise Fund 236,250
HRA Loan Enterprise Fund 4,227,804
Total All Funds $ 5,329,823

Allowances for uncollectible loans have been established for loans for which collection is
doubtful or questionable in the total amount of $44,971,014 at December 31, 2014. During
2014, loans determined to be uncollectible or forgiven were written off the books in the
amount of $2,124,568.
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Changes in total gross loans receivable, allowances for uncollectible loans, and accrued
interest receivable on loans for 2014 are shown below.

Total gross loans receivable - January 1, 2014 $ 77,569,750
New fund structure adjustment - January 1, 2014 (28,022,491)
Loans issued 3,345,464
Principal payments received (467,318)
Loans forgiven and written off (2,124,568)
Total Gross Loans Receivable - December 31, 2014 $ 50,300,837
Less: allowance for uncollectible loans - January 1, 2014 $ 71,476,382
New fund structure adjustment - January 1, 2014 (27,952,919)
Loans issued allowance 3,315,178
Loans forgiven and written off (1,867,627)
Total Allowance for Uncollectible Loans - December 31, 2014 $ 44,971,014
Net Loans Receivable - December 31, 2014 $ 5,329,823
Accrued Interest Receivable on Loans - December 31, 2014 (Net of Allowance) $ 775,512

During 2006, the HRA entered into an agreement with the City to sell a loan receivable from
The Science Museum of Minnesota (SM). The SM loan was sold for $2,400,000 and had a
principal balance of $4,000,000 at the time of sale which resulted in a loss on the sale of
$1,600,000. The $2,400,000 in sale proceeds was used by the HRA to repay Ramsey County
relating to the final closeout of the West Midway Tax Increment Financing District. Also, as
part of the loan sale agreement, the HRA was obligated to advance to the City an amount of
$860,000 in installments from 2006 through 2010. The City is to repay this advance, together
with 5% interest, in installments from 2011 through 2021. In 2011, the City began repayment
of the advance, with a payment of $87,475 including interest.

At December 31, 2014, future minimum principal and interest payments to be received under
the loan agreements for the next ten years are as follows:

2015 $ 889,580
2016 3,080,515
2017 2,603,829
2018 2,121,078
2019 1,383,625
2020 - 2024 6,671,490
Total $ 16,750,117
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C.

Land Held for Resale

Land held for resale is reported in the following funds as an asset at December 31, 2014.

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2014 Additions Deductions 2014

HRA General Fund $ 492,834 $ - $ 4,489 $ 488,345
HRA Tax Increment Capital
Projects Fund 1,352,328 - - 1,352,328
HRA Development Capital
Projects Fund 1,775,411 50,000 176,733 1,648,678
HRA Loan Enterprise Fund 7,337,433 634,288 749,700 7,222,021

Total All Funds $ 10,958,006 $ 684,288 $ 930,922 $ 10,711,372

On December 31, 2006, the HRA acquired property (the former Public Safety Building and
real estate located in downtown Saint Paul) from the City for $3,560,000. This property was
developed by Penfield Apartments, LLC (Penfield) per the resolution by the HRA Board on
September 8, 2010. The HRA paid $1,400,000 to the City on December 31, 2006. The
balance of $2,160,000 was paid to the City in 2011. Title to this property was conveyed to
Penfield Apartments, LLC at the closing of the mortgage required to develop the property.
Land Held for Resale for this property in the amount of $3,560,000 was transferred to Capital
Assets — Land, as Penfield Apartments, LLC is a blended component of the HRA.

Leases Receivable

As described in Note 2.J., the HRA entered into direct financing leases with the City during
the year ended December 31, 2008, and during the year ended December 31, 20009.

The City is obligated under the RiverCentre Parking Facility Improvement Lease to make
lease payments through 2024, which are to be used by the HRA to finance debt service
payments on its RiverCentre Parking Facility Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2009. The City
of Saint Paul has approved a debt capital management plan which includes the amounts
needed to make the lease payments through 2024. The City is obligated under the Jimmy Lee
Recreational Facility Lease to make lease payments through 2032, which are to be used by
the HRA to finance debt service payments on its Recreational Facility Lease Revenue Bonds,
Series 2008. The City has approved a debt capital management plan which includes the
amounts needed to make the lease payments through 2032.
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The following is a summary of the leases receivable for the year ended December 31, 2014.

RiverCentre Parking Jimmy Lee
Facility Improvement  Recreational Facility
Lease Lease Total City Leases
Balance of leases receivable - January 1, 2014 $ 5,267,500 $ 6,590,000 $ 11,857,500
Principal portion of lease payments — 2014 (382,500) (225,000) (607,500)
Balance of Leases Receivable - December 31, 2014 $ 4,885,000 $ 6,365,000 $ 11,250,000

The interest portion of these lease bonds in 2014 was $506,313. On the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet, the HRA Debt Service Fund reports deferred inflows of resources in an
amount to offset the entire amount of the lease receivable, since the lease payments are not
available to finance current period expenditures. Revenues for the principal amount of the
lease payments will be reported in the HRA Debt Service Fund in future years when the
payments are received. On the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position, the leases
receivable are not offset with deferred inflows of resources.

The future lease payments (including principal and interest) to be received under the

RiverCentre Parking Facility Improvement Lease and the Jimmy Lee Recreational Facility
Lease are the following:

RiverCentre

Jimmy Lee Parking Facility
Year Ending Recreational Improvement
December 31 Facility Lease Lease Total City Leases
2015 $ 537,187 $ 606,500 $ 1,143,687
2016 537,788 605,713 1,143,501
2017 537,681 606,494 1,144,175
2018 536,844 607,575 1,144,419
2019 540,250 608,798 1,149,048
2020 - 2024 2,696,274 2,732,629 5,428,903
2025 - 2029 2,691,662 - 2,691,662
2030 - 2034 1,619,500 - 1,619,500
Total $ 9,697,186 $ 5,767,709 $ 15,464,895
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E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows:

Balance Balance
Governmental Activities January 1, 2014 Increase Decrease December 31, 2014
Land (not depreciated) $ 3,042,169 $ - $ $ 3,042,169
Buildings 14,386,848 - 14,386,848
Pedestrian skyway bridges 13,016,925 - 13,016,925
Totals at historical cost $ 30,445,942 $ - $ $ 30,445,942
Less: accumulated depreciation
Buildings $ (2,666,453) $ (359,716) $ $ (3,026,169)
Pedestrian skyway bridges (9,174,203) (315,606) (9,489,809)
Total accumulated depreciation $ (11,840,656) $ (675,322) $ $ (12,515,978)
Total Governmental Activities
Capital Assets — Net $ 18,605,286 $ (675,322) $ $ 17,929,964
Balance
January 1, 2014 Balance
Business-type Activities Restated Increase Decrease December 31, 2014
Land (not depreciated) $ 31,754,831 $ - $ - $ 31,754,831
Buildings 9,757,920 53,842,484 (8,788) 63,591,616
Parking Ramps 107,410,008 584,861 (355,253) 107,639,616
Construction in progress (not depreciated) 53,049,471 - (53,049,471) -
Equipment 2,307,134 82,385 (6,498) 2,383,021
Totals at historical cost $ 204,279,364 $ 54,509,730 $  (53,420,010) $ 205,369,084
Less: accumulated depreciation
Buildings $ (442,720) $  (1,578,731) $ 2,564 $ (2,018,887)
Parking Ramps (45,893,667) (2,763,189) 186,064 (48,470,792)
Equipment (749,755) (244,634) 3,248 (991,141)
Total accumulated depreciation $  (47,086,142) $  (4,586,554) $ 191,876 $ (51,480,820)
Total Business-type Activities
Capital Assets — Net $ 157,193,222 $ 49,923,176 $  (53,228,134) $ 153,888,264

The January 1, 2014 balance of Business-type Activities capital assets was restated for the
reclassification of $1,663,957 of historical cost from Buildings to Parking Ramps. The related
accumulated depreciation of $637,513 was also reclassified from Buildings to Parking Ramps.
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Depreciation expense for 2014 was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities

Housing and economic development $ 675,322

Business-type Activities

Parking operations 3,052,752
Apartment operations 1,533,802
Total Business-type Activities $ 4,586,554

F. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of bonds payable and notes payable. This debt has been issued for
both governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activity debt has been issued
to provide financing for housing and economic development programs and projects.
Business-type debt was issued to finance the construction of parking facilities and to finance

the construction of market rate rental property.

(1) Changes in Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt activity for the year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows:

Balance
January 1, 2014 Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities Restated Increase Decrease December 31, 2014 One Year
Bonds payable
Tax increment bonds $ 47,185,000 $ 1,995,000 $ 4,860,000 $ 44,320,000 $ 3,161,000
Sales tax revenue bonds 31,430,000 - 31,430,000 - -
Lease revenue bonds 11,880,000 - 630,000 11,250,000 650,000
Add: unamortized premium on
Lease revenue bonds 148,339 - 14,241 134,098
Add: unamortized premium on
tax increment bonds 1,043,892 11,611 86,551 968,952
Totals bonds payable $ 91,687,231 $ 2,006,611 $ 37,020,792 $ 56,673,050 $ 3,811,000
Notes payable 14,491,104 - 560,589 13,930,515 435,830
Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Debt $ 106,178,335 $ 2,006,611 $ 37,581,381 $ 70,603,565 $ 4,246,830
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Balance Balance Due Within
Business-type Activities January 1, 2014 Increase Decrease December 31, 2014 One Year
Bonds payable
Limited tax bonds $ 7,855,000 100,000 $ 7,755,000 $ 110,000
Parking revenue bonds 37,815,000 1,830,000 35,985,000 1,915,000
Tax increment — parking bonds 23,235,000 1,710,000 21,525,000 1,650,000
Add: unamortized premium on
tax increment bonds 629,931 - 75,438 554,493
Add: unamortized premium on
parking revenue bonds 188,103 - 8,715 179,388
Add: unamortized discount on
parking revenue bonds (92,523) - (4,287) (88,236)
Total bonds payable $ 69,630,511 $ - $ 3,719,866 $ 65,910,645 $ 3,675,000
Notes and mortgage payable
LAAND Initiative Loans $ 1,580,000 $ - $ - $ 1,580,000 $ -
Penfield Apartments Mortgage 33,372,108 7,570,692 477,880 40,464,920 654,796
Total notes and mortgage payable $ 34,952,108 $ 7,570,692 $ 477,880 $ 42,044,920 $ 654,796
Total Business-type Activities
Long-Term Debt $ 104,582,619 $ 7,570,692 $ 4,197,746 $ 107,955,565 $ 4,329,796

All 2014 scheduled principal and interest payments were made in accordance with the
terms of the bonds and notes. The January 1, 2014 balance of the Governmental
Activities for notes payable was restated by ($3,819,387) for reclassification of a note
payable to a pay-as-you-go tax increment note. This note was removed from the
beginning balance and is now included with Note 5.J.

A description of the new 2014 issued long-term debt follows:

Penfield Apartments, LLC, a wholly owned entity of the HRA, began construction in
2012, and received an initial mortgage of $25,000 in 2012. This mortgage is privately
held, but insured by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development under
Section 221 (d)(4) of the National Housing Act. Construction continued in 2014, and
an additional $7,570,692 of the mortgage was issued. The maximum mortgage amount
is $40,942,800 and the total mortgage reached that amount during the 2014
construction.

In 2014, the Snelling-University Tax Increment Refunding Bonds, Series 2005C were
refunded with the Snelling-University General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2014D. The December 31, 2013 outstanding principal balance of $2,010,000 for the
Snelling-University Tax Increment Refunding Bonds, Series 2005C was paid and new
principal of $1,995,000 was added for the Snelling-University General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2014D.
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)

Debt Issue

Description of Bonds and Notes and Sources for Retirement

Governmental Activities

The governmental activity long-term debt, represented by the Tax Increment Bonds,
the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, the Lease Revenue Bonds, and the long-term notes are
not general obligations of the HRA, are not backed by the full faith and credit of the
HRA, and are to be retired through specific revenue sources. Under Minn. Stat.
8 469.034, the HRA is not authorized to issue bonds which constitute an indebtedness
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction. Tax
increments, sales taxes, and lease payments are pledged under the respective bond
covenants. Debt service payments have been made on the bonds and notes using the
designated financing sources. The City has issued a general obligation pledge on the
Koch Mobil Tax Increment Refunding Bonds, Series 2010A; the US Bank Tax
Increment Bonds, Series 2011F and 2011G, and the Snelling-University Taxable
Refunding Bonds Series, 2014D. The governmental activity bonds and notes are
serviced by the HRA Debt Service Fund. A listing of the governmental activity bonds
and notes at December 31, 2014, follows:

Original Debt
Issue Amount

Amount P;

Sources for Retirement Interest Rate (%)

ayable

December 31, 2014

North Quadrant Tax Increment
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002

North Quadrant Phase Il Tax Increment
Bonds, Series 2002

Drake Marble Tax Increment Bonds,
Series 2002

9th Street Lofts Tax Increment Bonds,
Series 2004

J.J. Hill Tax Increment Bonds,
Series 2004

Neighborhood Scattered Site Tax
Increment Bonds, Series 2005

Jimmy Lee Recreational Facility Lease
Revenue Bonds, Series 2008

North Quadrant District 7.500 $ 1,089,000 858,000
Tax Increments

North Quadrant District 7.000 1,140,000 1,021,000
Tax Increments

Riverfront Renaissance District 6.750 1,800,000 1,183,000
Tax Increments

9th Street Lofts District 6.375 1,335,000 1,081,000
Tax Increments

J.J. Hill District 6.250 3,660,000 3,072,000
Tax Increments

Neighborhood Scattered Site 4.240 - 5.450 7,515,000 2,460,000
District Tax Increments

City of Saint Paul 3.000 - 5.000 7,685,000 6,365,000
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Debt Issue

Sources for Retirement

Original Debt

Interest Rate (%) Issue Amount

Amount Payable
December 31, 2014

RiverCentre Parking Facility Lease
Revenue Bonds, Series 2009

Koch Mobil Tax Increment Refunding
Bonds, Series 2010A *

Emerald Gardens Tax-Exempt Tax
Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2010

US Bank Tax Increment Refunding
Bonds, Series 2011F *

US Bank Tax Increment Refunding
Bonds, Series 2011G

Upper Landing Tax Increment Refunding
Bonds, Series 2012

Snelling-University General Obligation Taxable

Refunding Bonds, Series 2014D

HUD Section 108 Note, Series 2003-A

Upper Landing Tax Increment
Revenue Note, Series 2008

Catholic Charities Midway Residence
POPSHP Loan

Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Debt

City of Saint Paul

Koch Mobil District

Tax Increments

Emerald Gardens District
Tax Increments

Riverfront Renaissance District
Tax Increments

Riverfront Renaissance District

Tax Increments

Riverfront Renaissance District

Tax Increments

Snelling-University District

Tax Increments

EDI Grants, Port Authority

Upper Landing District
Tax Increments

Forgiven after 20 years
of compliance
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3.000 - 4.500 6,790,000 4,885,000
2.000 - 4.000 2,670,000 2,225,000
5.000 - 6.500 6,595,000 5,800,000
2.000 3,060,000 790,000
2.000 - 4.000 8,870,000 8,870,000
5.000 15,790,000 14,965,000
1.000 - 1.250 1,995,000 1,995,000
5.200 3,300,000 2,165,000
5.750 2,019,087 1,165,663
0.000 10,599,852 10,599,852

$ 85,912,939 69,500,515
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Business-type Activities

The business-type activity long-term debt is reported in the HRA Parking Enterprise
Fund, the HRA Loan Enterprise Fund, the HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund, and the HRA
Penfield Enterprise Fund where specific fund revenues are used to service the debt.
The City has issued a general obligation pledge on the Block 39 Tax Increment Bonds,
Series 2009G and 2009H. A listing of the business-type bonds and notes at

December 31, 2014, follows:

Original Amount
Interest Debt Payable
Rate Issue December 31,
Debt Issue Sources for Retirement (%) Amount 2014

Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A Tth Street Ramp Parking Revenues 6.75 11,305,000 $ 2,825,000
Block 39 Tax Increment Refunding Block 39 District Tax Increments,

Bonds, Series 2009G Block 39 Parking Revenues 3.00 - 4.00 20,695,000 20,695,000
Block 39 Tax Increment Refunding Block 39 District Tax Increments,

Bonds, Series 2009H Block 39 Parking Revenues 3.10 8,655,000 830,000
Parking Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2010A HRA Parking Revenue 3.00 - 5.00 24,135,000 21,665,000
Parking Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2010B HRA Parking Revenue 3.00 - 5.00 12,820,000 11,495,000
Lofts at Farmers Market Limited Tax

Bonds, Series 2010A (BABs) HRA Tax Levy 4.35-7.50 7,170,000 7,170,000
Lofts at Farmers Market Limited Tax

Bonds, Series 2010B HRA Tax Levy 4.35 685,000 585,000
LAAND Initiative Loan — Metropolitan

Council Land Sales Proceeds - 1,000,000 1,000,000
LAAND Initiative Loan — Family

Housing Fund Land Sales Proceeds - 580,000 580,000
Penfield Apartments, LLC

Mortgage A District Tax Increment 3.12 8,295,500 8,129,171
Penfield Apartments, LLC

Mortgage B Apartment Operations 3.12 32,647,300 32,335,749

Total Business-type Activities
Long-Term Debt 127,987,800 ¢ 107,309,920
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(3) Annual Requirements - Principal and Interest on Long-Term Debt

Annual principal and interest debt service requirements for governmental activity long-term debt are as

follows:

Year Ending Tax Increment Bonds Lease Revenue Bonds
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 3,161,000 $ 2,082,796 650,000 $ 485,013
2016 3,034,000 1,967,239 670,000 462,481
2017 3,528,000 1,832,944 695,000 438,319
2018 1,833,000 1,720,719 720,000 411,231
2019 1,918,000 1,638,621 755,000 381,038
2020 - 2024 11,700.000 6,718,507 4,275,000 1,390,280
2025 - 2029 18,811,000 3,086,826 2,015,000 676,662
2030 - 2034 335,000 13,510 1,470,000 149,500
2035 - 2039 - - - -
2040 - 2044 - - - -
2045 - 2049 - - - -
Total 44,320,000 $ 19,061,162 11,250,000 $ 4,394,524
Year Ending Development Notes Total Governmental Activity
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 435,830 $ 181,098 4,246,830 $ 2,748,907
2016 446,669 157,584 4,150,669 2,587,304
2017 508,140 133,138 4,731,140 2,404,401
2018 520,280 105,128 3,073,280 2,237,078
2019 533,128 76,140 3,206,128 2,095,799
2020 - 2024 886,616 81,545 16,861,616 8,190,332
2025 - 2029 10,599,852 - 31,425,852 3,763,488
2030 - 2034 - - 1,805,000 163,010
2035 - 2039 - - - -
2040 — 2044 - - - -
2045 — 2049 - - - -
Total 13,930,515 $ 734,633 69,500,515 $ 24,190,319

Annual principal and interest debt service requirements for business-type activity long-term debt are as

follows:
Parking Revenue Bonds Tax Increment - Parking Bonds Limited Tax Bonds
Year Ending HRA Parking Enterprise Fund HRA Parking Enterprise Fund HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 1,915,000 $ 1,678,924 $ 1,650,000 $ 727,846 110,000 507,350
2016 2,010,000 1,588,476 1,725,000 664,081 120,000 502,347
2017 2,105,000 1,492,925 1,800,000 593,581 135,000 496,801
2018 1,140,000 1,384,456 1,850,000 520,581 145,000 490,711
2019 1,175,000 1,346,419 1,855,000 455,756 160,000 484,077
2020 - 2024 6,630,000 5,989,349 10,310,000 1,322,236 940,000 2,297,370
2025 - 2029 8,200,000 4,416,450 2,335,000 40,863 1,360,000 1,975,500
2030 - 2034 10,405,000 2,210,312 - - 1,730,000 1,446,224
2035 - 2039 2,405,000 120,250 - - 2,090,000 836,669
2040 - 2044 - - - - 965,000 36,188
2045 - 2049 - - - - - -
2050 - 2054 - - - - - -
Total $ 35,985,000 $ 20,227,561 $ 21,525,000 $ 4,324,944 7,755,000 9,073,237
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Penfield Apartments, LLC Mortgage LAAND Initiative Loans Total
Year Ending HRA Penfield Enterprise Fund HRA Loan Enterprise Fund Business-type Activity
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 654,796 $ 1,253,194 $ - $ 17,400 $ 4,329,796 $ 4,184,714
2016 675,521 1,232,470 - 17,400 4,530,521 4,004,774
2017 696,901 1,211,090 - 17,400 4,736,901 3,811,797
2018 718,957 1,189,033 1,580,000 17,400 5,433,957 3,602,181
2019 741,712 1,166,278 - - 3,931,712 3,452,530
2020 - 2024 4,075,910 5,464,045 - - 21,955,910 15,073.000
2025 - 2029 4,763,065 4,776,887 - - 16,658,065 11,209,700
2030 - 2034 5,566,068 3,973,886 - - 17,701,068 7,630,422
2035 - 2039 6,141,976 3,039,257 - - 10,636,976 3,996,176
2040 - 2044 4,955,450 2,193,028 - - 5,920,450 2,229,216
2045 - 2049 5,790,888 1,357,591 - - 5,790,888 1,357,591
2050 - 2054 5,683,676 398,097 - - 5,683,676 398,097
Total $ 40,464,920 $ 27,254,856 $ 1,580,000 $ 69,600 $ 107,309,920 $ 60,950,198
(4) Prior Year Defeasance of Debt
In 2014, the Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996 bonds were defeased by
placing the proceeds of new taxable revenue refunding notes in a City indenture of trust
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. The new taxable
revenue refunding notes were issued by the City and will not be reported by the HRA.
On December 31, 2014, $31,430,000 of the following outstanding bonds are considered
defeased:
Amount
Outstanding
December 31,
2014
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 $ 31,430,000
G. Employee Benefits, Pension Plan Obligations
As part of the reorganization discussed in Note 1, the HRA employees became employees of
the City in 1978. The HRA has no employees. Services are provided by the City in
administering HRA programs. All pension costs, vacation, and sick leave benefits are paid
and accounted for by the City.
H. Revolving Loan Agreement - The Saint Paul Foundation

In December 2003, a loan agreement, with a revolving line of credit, was executed between
the Saint Paul Foundation (Foundation) and the HRA whereby the Foundation has made
available funds in the amount of $2,500,000 to the HRA for use in its major housing
initiative, the Housing 5000 Program. Any of the funds advanced under the loan agreement
to the HRA by the Foundation are to be used solely for developer loans on approved housing
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projects. The HRA is to repay the principal amount of the advances to the Foundation as the
developer loans are repaid to the HRA. Simple interest of one percent on the outstanding
Foundation advances is payable on each December 31 starting with 2004. December 1, 2015,
is the final maturity date under the loan agreement.

The HRA Loan Enterprise Fund accounts for the line of credit transactions. Changes in the
balance due under the revolving line of credit under the loan agreement for the year ended
December 31, 2014, are as follows:

Balance Due Balance Due
January 1, Increase Decrease December 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014
$ - $ - $ - $

Under the revolving loan agreement, there is $2,500,000 available in loan funds from the
Foundation at December 31, 2014.

. Risk Management

The HRA is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City of Saint Paul
administers the HRA’s risk management activities. The HRA’s risk management activities
are reported in the HRA General Fund. Claim expenditures and liabilities are reported when
it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
These losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs).
The liability for claims and judgments is recognized when amounts are due and payable. The
HRA had no January 1, 2013, liability for claims and judgments; nor were there any fiscal
year 2013 or 2014 claims or claims payments, which resulted in any end of fiscal year 2013
or 2014 claims liabilities. The HRA acquired in 2009 a site with existing pollution which
will require remediation. To address its exposure to risk of loss related to pollution liability
torts, the HRA has purchased a Premises Pollution Liability Insurance Policy. The limits of
this liability coverage is $20,000,000.

The City has purchased all risk property insurance coverage of $1.3 billion for its real and
personal property throughout the City. The deductible for each occurrence of damage or loss
of property is $250,000. Each City department participating in the insurance program is
charged a yearly amount based upon pro rata shares of the property insurance coverage, and
contributions are made to a risk retention pool to address potential losses due to the higher
deductible. The HRA is responsible for the first $10,000 of each loss. The risk retention
pool reimburses losses that exceed $10,000 that are not covered by insurance. The HRA
General Fund pays the insurance premium for HRA-related property coverage. The HRA
General Fund reimburses the City for deductible amounts paid each year based on its share of
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the property insurance coverage. There were no significant reductions in insurance for the
previous year or settlements in excess of insurance coverage for any of the past three fiscal
years. A complete audit and actuarial analysis is conducted by the City’s Risk and Employee
Benefit Management Division to insure proper premium, retention, and administrative
charges. Tort liability is administered by the City with professional claim managers and
attorneys. Because the HRA has no employees, there is no risk for workers’ compensation
and unemployment compensation (Note 5.G.).

Pay-As-You-Go Tax Increment Notes

The HRA has issued pay-as-you-go tax increment notes to finance development in the
following tax increment financing districts as of December 31, 2014.

Total Amount

Expended
Note (Principal &
Principal Note Interest) Under
Balance Principal Notes for the
Tax Increment Date Restated Balance Year Ended
No. Financing District — Project Issued Note Amount 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2014
215 Superior Street Cottages 7/16/1998 $ 311,341 $ 219,689 $ 197,239 $ 39,647
194 1919 University 11/7/1997 1,357,000 1,357,000 1,357,000 140,250
193 Hubbard Site 7/31/1999 1,259,924 - - -
212 Block 4-TIR Note, Series 2004 5/6/2004 17,800,000 17,146,685 16,340,505 1,780,690
212 Block 4-Taxable TIR Note,
Series 2004 5/6/2004 2,975,838 - - -
260 North Quadrant Rental Phase | 2/1/2001 2,140,000 2,140,000 2,140,000 128,937
268 North Quadrant Rental Phase I1 2/28/2002 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 126,740
268 North Quadrant Shortfall TIR
Note Il 6/20/2002 179,781 179,781 179,781
228 Emerald Park Owner Occupied
Phase | 2/26/2003 3,067,000
267 Emerald Park Owner Occupied
Phase 11 4/12/2005 2,074,000 - - -
267 Emerald Park Rental 10/16/2002 3,110,000 3,110,000 3,039,523 341,396
266 Emerald Park
Commercial/Metro Project 6/21/2005 1,225,000 - - -
237 Osceola Park, Series 2002 11/4/2002 950,000 950,000 950,000 70,726
269 Phalen Village Ames Lake 8/1/2003 418,000 418,000 418,000 15,763
234 Phalen Village CUB Foods Proj. 3/1/2008 3,100,000 2,974,097 2,886,559 318,965
232 Straus Building 12/26/2002 600,000 596,964 596,964 30,123
240 Bridgecreek Senior Place Project 6/30/2004 2,398,952 2,398,952 2,398,952 137,977
241 Lyons Court Rental Project 4/14/2004 682,000 682,000 682,000 37,795
243 Shepard-Davern Ownership 11/1/2006 3,257,067 2,741,452 2,737,122 182,442
Housing
244 Shepard Davern Rental Housing 3/28/2006 4,820,000 3,819,389 3,607,137 403,953
271 Carlton Lofts 10/1/2005 2,358,660 2,358,660 2,358,660 97,218
245 Shepard-Davern Gateway Senior 12/2/2003 1,353,286 1,353,286 1,353,286 90,295
257 Phalen Senior Lofts Project
(Payne Phalen TIF) 2/10/2005 925,000 908,750 908,750 31,849
278 River Pointe Lofts Project 12/27/2007 1,829,000 1,653,532 1,601,699 137,981
279 Minnesota Building 6/9/2010 936,000 936,000 936,000 62,853
291 Carondelet Village 2/24/2011 3,104,000 - 3,104,000 191,271
299 Cosseta 11/4/2011 388,000 388,000 388,000 39,301
301 Penfield 6/22/2012 8,295,000 - 8,295,500 -
302 Pioneer-Endicott 12/31/2012 2,500,000 2,500,000
304 Schmidt Brewery 6/14/2012 2,650,000 2,650,000
305 West Side Flats 11/19/2012 3,800,000 3,800,000
Total $ 81,364,849 $ 47,832,237 $ 66,926,677 $ 4,406,172
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M.

The notes are payable only after the HRA has received tax increment revenue from the above
districts and can only be paid using that tax increment as the financing source. No liability is
recognized at December 31, 2014, since all scheduled note payments have been made from
the available tax increment. All expenditures under the notes are reported in the HRA Tax
Increment Capital Projects Fund. The January 1, 2014 balance pay-as-you-go tax increment
notes payable was restated by $3,819,387 for reclassification of a note payable to a pay-as-
you-go tax increment note. This note was removed from the beginning balance of notes
payable in Note 5.F.(1) and is now included with the Shepard Davern Rental Housing tax
increment financing district pay-as-you-go tax increment notes.

Loan Guaranty Commitments

The HRA has entered into agreements with lending institutions and various Saint Paul
businesses to guaranty the repayment of a portion of loans issued by the lending institutions
to the businesses. The primary repayment source of these loans is the business. The HRA
would be required to repay a portion of the loans in the event of default by the business.
There are no private loans issued where a HRA guaranty exists at December 31, 2014.

Construction and Other Significant Commitments

At December 31, 2014, the HRA had no significant commitments. The wholly owned entity,
Penfield Apartments, LLC, a blended component unit of the HRA, began construction in
2012 and completed construction in 2014,

Deferred Inflows of Resources

The amount reported as Deferred Inflows of Resources on the Balance Sheet — Governmental
Funds in the HRA General Fund, HRA Debt Service Fund, HRA Tax Increment Capital
Projects Fund, and HRA Development Capital Projects Fund include $579,059, $11,386,889,
$2,264,655, and $1,862,393, respectively, which are from the following unavailable revenue
sources:

HRA HRA HRA
HRA Tax Increment Development Total
HRA Debt Service Capital Capital Governmental

General Fund Fund Projects Fund Projects Fund Funds
Property Tax Increments $ - $ 80,185 $ 90,492 $ - $ 170,677
Property Tax Levy 71,177 71,177
Investment Interest 19,537 56,704 65,585 4,196 146,022
Leases Receivable 11,250,000 - - 11,250,000
Land Held for Resale 488,345 - 1,352,328 1,648,678 3,489,351
Notes and Loans Receivable - - 756,250 209,519 965,769
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 579,059 $ 11,386,889 $ 2,264,655 $ 1,862,393 $ 16,092,996
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Interfund Transactions

)

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, the HRA has transactions between funds to finance
operations and provide services. To the extent that certain transactions between funds
had not been paid or received as of December 31, 2014, individual fund interfund
receivable and payable balances were as follows:

Interfund

Fund Receivable Interfund Payable

HRA General Fund $ 692,050 $ -
HRA Tax Increment Capital Projects Fund - 3,423,364
HRA Development Capital Projects Fund 684,887 -
HRA Parking Enterprise Fund 564,744 -
HRA Loan Enterprise Fund 2,296,427 814,744
Total Interfund Receivables and Payables - All Funds $ 4,238,108 $ 4,238,108

The interfund receivables in the HRA General Fund, the HRA Development Capital
Projects Fund, and the HRA Loan Enterprise Fund include $692,050, $434,887, and
$2,296,427, respectively, which were advanced to the HRA Tax Increment Capital
Projects Fund for the purpose of financing development expenditures in various tax
increment financing districts prior to the receipt of tax increment revenues in these
districts. The advances are to be repaid with interest when future available tax
increment revenues are received in these districts. The interfund receivables in the
HRA Development Capital Projects Fund and the HRA Tax Parking Enterprise Fund
include $250,000 and $564,744, respectively, which were advanced to the HRA
Enterprise Fund for the purchase of land held for resale, and to hold a loan to a
ballpark project.
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)

Interfund Transfers

Individual fund interfund transfers during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014,
were as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out
From To

Transfers Other Funds Other Funds
HRA General Fund $ 749,887 $ -
HRA Debt Service Fund 545,585 4,933,726
HRA Tax Increment Capital Projects Fund 4,933,726 545,585
HRA Development Capital Projects Fund 940,000 -
HRA Parking Enterprise Fund - 641,767
HRA Loan Enterprise Fund 1,903,282 940,000
HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund - 749,887
HRA Penfield Enterprise Fund - 1,261,515
Total Interfund Transfers - All Funds $ 9,072,480 $ 9,072,480

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects them to
the fund that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt
service from the funds collecting the receipts to the HRA Debt Service Fund, (3) use
unrestricted revenues collected in the HRA Parking Enterprise Fund to the finance the
purchase of property in the HRA Loan Enterprise Fund, and (4) use unrestricted
revenues in the HRA Loan Enterprise Fund to fund projects in the HRA Development
Capital Projects Fund.

O. Net Position/Fund Balances

1)

Net Position - Governmental Activities

The amount reported as “Net Investment in Capital Assets” on the government-wide
Statement of Net Position for the governmental activities as of December 31, 2014, is
determined as follows:

Capital assets $ 30,445,942
Less: accumulated depreciation (12,515,978)
Less: outstanding principal of related debt (10,599,852)

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 7,330,112

The amount reported as “Restricted for Debt Service” on the government-wide
Statement of Net Position for the governmental activities is based on required balances
per bond indentures. This amount is $10,259,124 at December 31, 2014.
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(2)  Net Position - Business-type Activities

The amount reported as “Net Investment in Capital Assets” on the government-wide
Statement of Net Position for the business-type activities and on the Statement of Net
Position for the HRA Parking Enterprise Fund, HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund, and the
HRA Penfield Enterprise Fund as of December 31, 2014, is determined as follows:

Capital assets $ 205,369,084
Less: accumulated depreciation (51,480,820)
Less: outstanding principal of HRA Parking Enterprise Fund debt (58,155,645)
Less: outstanding principal of HRA Lofts Enterprise Fund debt (7,755,000)
Less: outstanding principal of HRA Penfield Enterprise Fund debt (40,464,920)

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 47,512,699

The amount reported as “Restricted for Debt Service” on the government-wide
Statement of Net Position for the business-type activities and on the Statement of Net
Position for Proprietary Funds as of December 31, 2014, as follows:

HRA Lofts HRA Parking Total
Enterprise Enterprise Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds
Restricted Assets
Cash for revenue bond debt service $ - $ 2,646,304 $ 2,646,304
Cash for general obligation bond debt service - 2,377,846 2,377,846
Cash for limited tax bond debt service 364,871 - 364,871
Less: liabilities payable from restricted assets
accrued interest on bonds (212,393) (951,453) (1,163,846)
Restricted for Debt Service $ 152,478 $ 4,072,697 $ 4,225,175

The amount reported as “Restricted for Debt Service” is based on required balances per
bond indentures.

The amount reported as “Restricted for Operations and Maintenance” on the
government-wide Statement of Net Position for the business-type activities and on the
Statement of Net Position for Proprietary Funds as of December 31, 2014, as follows:

Restricted assets - cash for revenue bond operations and maintenance $ 201,185
Restricted assets - cash for limited tax bond operations and maintenance 370,885
Restricted for Operations and Maintenance $ 572,070
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©)

Non-spendable
Advances to Other Funds

Advances to Other Governments

Restricted
Debt Service
Tax Increment Financing
Grants
Bond Proceeds
Pollution Remediation
Total Restricted

Committed
Economic Development

Assigned
Economic Development

Total Fund Balance

The amount reported as “Grantors” is based on restrictions from granting agencies. The
amount reported as “Grantors” on the government-wide Statement of Net Position for
the business-type activities and on the Statement of Net Position for Proprietary Funds
as of December 31, 2014, as follows:

Restricted assets — program income cash balance for grants $ 773,865

Restricted for Grantors $ 773,865

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Portions of the Authority’s fund balance are nonspendable, restricted due to legal
restrictions, committed by Authority action, assigned by Authority management, or
unassigned. At December 31, 2014, fund balance classifications were reported in the
following governmental funds:

HRA HRA
HRA Tax Increment Development HRA Total
HRA HRA Grants Debt Service Capital Capital Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund Projects Fund Projects Fund Funds

$ 692,050 $ - $ - $ - $ 684,887 $ 1,376,937
- - _ - _ - 2,362,191 2,362,191

$ 692,050 $ - $ - $ - $ 3,047,078 $ 3,739,128
$ - $ - $ 10,259,124 $ - $ - $ 10,259,124
- - - 11,142,196 - 11,142,196

- 178,625 - - - 178,625

- - - - 5,213,367 5,213,367

- - - - 1,916,181 1,916,181

$ - $ 178,625 $ 10,259,124 $ 11,142,196 $ 7,129,548 $ 28,709,493
$ 6,370,768 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 6,370,768
$ 4,959,422 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 4,959,422
$ 12,022,240 $ 178,625 $ 10,259,124 $ 11,142,196 $ 10,176,626 $ 43,778,811
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6. Contingent Liabilities

Litigation

The HRA, in connection with the normal conduct of its affairs, is involved in various judgments,
claims, and litigation; it is expected that the final settlement of these matters will not materially

affect the financial statements of the HRA.

City of Saint Paul Taxable Variable Rate Demand Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds,

(RiverCentre Arena Project), Series 2009A

In May 2009, the City issued its Sales Tax Revenue Bonds in the amount of $65,455,000 to
refinance the Series 1999A Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds originally issued in the amount of
$72,570,000 to finance the construction of a new multi-purpose sports and entertainment arena in
the RiverCentre Complex. The City, the HRA, the RiverCentre Authority, and the Bond Trustee
have entered into a Joint Pledge Agreement whereby the following sources are pledged as security
for the payment of the principal and interest on the Series 2009A bonds: (1) one-half percent City
sales tax; (2) Arena net revenues resulting from the Arena lease between the City and the
Minnesota Wild National Hockey League Team; and (3) tax increments received by the HRA in the
years 2016 and after derived from the Block 39/Arena Tax Increment Financing District. The use
of the City sales tax for the retirement of the Series 2009A bonds is subject to a parity pledge of
such sales tax to the payment of debt service on the HRA Sales and Tax Revenue Bonds, Series

1996.

In August 2014, the City issued its Taxable Revenue Refunding Notes (State of MN Continuing
Grant Appropriation), Series 2014 in the amount of $33,720,000 to finance the defeasance of the
outstanding HRA Series 1996 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds to the first call date of November 1, 2015,
ending the Joint Pledge Agreement and removing this obligation from the Sales Tax revenue
stream. In December 2014, the City issued two additional series of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds,
2014F & 2014G to be on parity with the Series 2009A Bonds to finance the establishment of an
economic development fund to finance projects city-wide. A third series, the City Subordinate
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 has a subordinate pledge of sales tax, after the debt service

is satisfied on the senior, parity Series 2009A, 2014F & 2014G Bonds.

Reqgions Hospital Parking Ramp Contingent Lease

During 2006, the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul (Port) issued revenue bonds to finance
construction of a parking ramp at the Regions Hospital complex. The bonds are 30 year bonds with
final scheduled retirement in 2036. The Port will lease the ramp for years 2008 through 2030 to
Regions Hospital after construction is completed. The HRA agreed to a lease commitment in an
amount equal to the annual debt service on the Port bonds for the years 2031 through 2036. The
scheduled principal balance on the bonds is $6,045,000 in 2031 prior to the 2031 through 2036 debt
payments. This HRA lease is not triggered and no payments are made by the HRA if any one of the

following takes place:

94



HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

Note 6. (Continued)

1. Regions Hospital continues to need the ramp for their business and extends the lease with

the Port from 2031 through 2036.

2. Sometime during the period of 2008 through 2030, Regions Hospital elects to purchase

the ramp for the greater of the outstanding debt or fair market value of the ramp.

3. Regions Hospital defaults on the Port lease and the bond trustee determines on behalf of
the bondholders to sell the ramp to a third party and cancels the HRA lease commitment.

Cleanup of Hazardous Materials

Properties owned by the HRA may have certain contingent liabilities associated with them due to
potential contamination from hazardous materials or difficulty in securing vacant structures located
on them. It is not expected that these contingencies will have a material effect on the financial

statements of the HRA.
The following properties have been identified as possible sites of pollution or contamination:
1.  Capp Road (Catholic Charities) - Possible pollution or contamination

2. Koch/Mobil - Remediation has already been completed
3. Rivoli Street Properties - Remediation has already been completed by the original polluter

In 2009, the Exxon-Mobil property site was purchased which is polluted and will require pollution
remediation. This site was a former petroleum storage tank farm, built in the 1950°s which had
suffered some leakage of petroleum. The purchase agreement requires the HRA to remediate the
pollution and restricts the future use of the land to specific uses. The land was purchased for $1, and
in addition, the seller donated $5,000,000 to the HRA for pollution remediation and possible park
features. This donation is identified as unearned revenue in the Governmental Balance Sheet, in the
HRA Development Capital Projects Fund. Because the land has no fair market value before

remediation, it is valued at its purchase price in the Governmental Activities Capital Assets.

recognition of the existing pollution, the probability-weighted average of minimum to maximum
remediation cost of $3,900,000 less $279,117 paid out in 2010, $581,274 paid out in 2011,
$533,515 paid out in 2012, $375,950 paid out in 2013, and $213,963 paid out in 2014 and thus far
(remaining $1,916,181), is identified in the Statement of Net Position — Long Term Liabilities as a
Pollution Remediation Obligation. This pollution remediation obligation is an estimate and subject
to changes resulting from price increases or reductions, technology, or changes in applicable laws

or regulations.
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HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES
ALL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

(Amounts in dollars)

City

HRA GENERAL FUND

Financing for HRA Board Salaries and Expenses $ 183,233

Financing for Policy Analyst 84,322

Financing for Citizen Participation Program 18,486
Total HRA General Fund 286,041
HRA DEBT SERVICE FUND

Financing for RiverCentre 452,565

Financing for City Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 8,236,365
Total HRA Debt Service Fund 8,688,930
HRA TAX INCREMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Financing for RiverCentre Arena Revenue Bonds 757,780
Total HRA Tax Increment Capital Projects Fund 757,780
HRA LOAN ENTERPRISE FUND

Financing for Minority Business Development 742,120
Total HRA Loan Enterprise Fund 742,120
HRA PARKING ENTERPRISE FUND

Financing for Farmers Market Parking Operations 28,312
Total HRA Parking Enterprise Fund 28,312

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES $ 10,503,183

111



- This page intentionally left blank -

112



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the HRA's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements and note disclosures says about the

HRA's overall financial health.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the HRA's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the HRA's most
significant local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
HRA's current levels of outstanding debt and the HRA's ability to issue additonal debt in
the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the HRA's activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and capital asset data to help the reader understand
how the information in the HRA's financial report relates to the services the HRA provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Saint Paul, Minnesota
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Taxpayer

Xcel Energy

Minnesota Mutual Life Insurance (Corporate Headquarters)
St. Paul Tower LP (World Trade Center)
Traveler's Insurance (Corporate Headquarters)
U.S. Bank Corp. Property & U.S. Bancorp
BNSF Railway Co.

Behringer Harvard L C LLC (Lawson Software)
CSM Investors, Inc.

Ford Motor Company

Court International LLC

St. Paul Companies

3M

Stuart Companies

Health East

1) Ford Motor Company closed its Highland Park plant in December 2011. Ford Motor Company has begun the decommissioning process for the plant and the environmental
cleanup of this plant site began in 2013 for possible future redevelopment.

Source: Ramsey County Department of Property Records and Revenue.
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2014 2005
Percentage Percentage
Taxable of Total City Taxable of Total City
Capacity Capacity Capacity Capacity
Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
$5,915,102 1 2.70% $4,501,318 1 2.22%
2,008,490 2 0.92% 1,679,904 2 0.83%
1,417,250 3 0.65% 749,374 8 0.37%
1,259,926 4 0.58% -
1,154,250 5 0.53% 1,384,533 3 0.68%
1,149,876 6 0.53% -
905,034 7 0.41% 830,500 7 0.41%
904,326 8 0.41% - - -
774,386 9 0.35% 641,100 10 0.32%
685,194 10 0.31% -
- - 1,006,866 4 0.50%
- - 938,216 5 0.46%
- - - 920,902 6 0.45%
- - - 649,798 9 0.32%
T 316173834 7.39% $13,302,511 6.56%

(Unaudited)
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City of Saint Paul, Minnesota

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Year and Eight Years Ago

Employers

University of Minnesota
State of Minnesota ¥

3M Company

Saint Paul Public Schools
Ramsey County ¥

Health East

Regions Hospital

United Hospital

City of Saint Paul ¥
Securian Financial Group

U.S. Bancorp

Marsden Building Maintenance

U.S. Postal Service

Total

Y Includes full- and part-time employees.

Data from nine years ago is not available. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends presenting data from the earliest year available, 2006.
Sources: MN Department of Employment and Economic Development for 2006 data; 2014 data compliled by Springsted Inc. based on telephone survey.

2014 2006
Percentage Percentage
Number of of Total Number of of Total
Employees Rank City Employment Employees Rank City Employment
18,000 1 10.17%
15,427 2 8.72% 13,671 1 7.54%
10,500 3 5.93%
6,101 4 3.45% 6,567 2 3.62%
4,378 5 2.47% 3,770 7 2.08%
4317 6 2.44% 5,080 3 2.80%
3,740 7 2.11% 4,000 6 2.21%
2,924 8 1.65% 3,300 9 1.82%
2,822 9 1.59% 3,400 8 1.88%
2,532 10 1.43%
4,700 4 2.59%
4,000 5 2.21%
3,200 10 1.77%
70,741 39.96% 51,688 28.52%
Unaudited
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